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November 30, 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

The Office of Strategic initiatives (OSI) respectfully requests authorization to enter into a SOLE SOURCE
contract with Southwestern Community Services, Inc. (VC #17751 1), Keene, NH, in the amount of $ 10,597.00 for
the Senior Energy Assistance Services (SEAS) Program, effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval
through September 30, 2022. 100% Other Funds (NH DHHS).

Funding is available in the account as follows, with the authority to adjust encumbrances in each of the State
Fiscal years through the Budget Office if needed and justified. Funding for FY 2021, FY 2022, and FY 2023 is
contingent upon continuing appropriation and availability of funds.

Office of Strategic Initiatives. Fuel Assistance

01-02-02-024010-77050000

074-500587 Grants for Pub Assist & Relief

FY2021 FY 2022 FY 2023

$3,974.00 $5,298.00 $1,325.00

EXPLANATION

This contract is SOLE SOURCE based on the historical performance of the Community Action Agencies with
the New Hampshire Fuel Assistance Program. The Senior Energy Assistance Services (SEAS) Program makes
home energy more affordable for households with members who are sixty years of age or older, who are
experiencing a home energy hardship, and who are not eligible for the New Hampshire Fuel Assistance Program
(LIHEAP) under the current income limits. The Community Action Agencies determine eligibility for the Fuel
Assistance Program and are able to efficiently distribute these funds to households in need that are not eligible for
that program.

A federal grant under the Older Americans Act funds (Title IIIB) awarded to the New Hampshire Department of
Health and Human Services (NH DHHS) Division of Elderly and Adult Services provides funding for the Senior
Energy Assistance Services Program. A Memorandum of Understanding for this program was previously
approved by the Governor and Executive Council on February 20, 2019, Item #46.

In the event that the Other Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not be requested to support this
program.

Respectfully^bmitted,

iaj ed Chicoine
Director

JC/EPS

TDD Access: Relay NH 1-800-735-2964
G&C 12/16/2020



FpRM NUMBER B-37 (>ersioh 12/11/2019)

Norice: n-his a^emcnl and all pf'iis'attachmcnts.shall ̂ ome pubiic.upon wbmission-to Governor and
Cxecutivc,Cpuridl;r6r!pppr6,va .Anyjnfdrniaiton ihnt js private;xonHdPM pVpropriMary must;,
:,bc clearly .Tderitifi^tp'the.agent^.and'agr^foihwriiing'pripr to

;AOREEMENT
ilic.Slatcof New'Hampshire and liic Contractor hereby muluaily ugrcc as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

i. IDENTIElCATiON.

1.1 StatcA'gency.N^ei,
OfFicc'of-Strtflcgic Initiatives

,1.2- State Agency Address;
107 Pjca^t'Sireci^ Johnson Hajl,
G6ncbrd;'Ncw:Hampi;hirc. -0,3301;

1..3 ContrticlbrName
SoulHwcstcm Conimuni^ SciVicw.. Inc.-

■ 1-4' Cohu^ciqAA'd,dre»
,0'Gprnmunily Wayrf^ Box 603,

1.5. Contractor;-Phone-
Niimber

(6p3):35V7512

r.'6",Accduhl Numbcr-
0 r^2-02-b246i 6.77050000-
q74:5005S7-

'02SEAS21/22/23

1.7 Completion pale
•.September 30,.2027

r.8 Price.Limilallbh
SI.6,55j7;bO:"

1-9 Gonii^ctingip.fnccr for State, Agency
Bilccn Smlgl6wski;;Fuci Aisisiahw.Prognah'AdiiTitnisiraior

, 1 .lO'Slalc.Agchcy .Telephone, Number
(603)771-2155.:

1.11' Gontracior,Signature 1; 12^ Name and fTitle ofContractorSigtiatory
!John Manning, CBb'

l.'IX -'S^c AgcnQ^i^aturc

-  ̂^'=7///6L
1.14' Namc.and Title of'Slalc Agency-Signatory.

CLvColue.
1/15 Approval by tlic:N:li;-Depanmenl of AdniinisiraD'onj'bivision of Pcrsonnel.'('i/^iV7/3//cfl/j/cj/ '
j / >.i .'>•• v
// By:t^ Director.On:

1.16' Approval.bythc AtIornpy:G^ral.(Form; Siibstance and Execution) (if^applicablel j

By: 0"-

1.17 Approvalby thc.Govcntor:and.'Exccutive'Cduncil.'(7/'«y7/?//coWff/

C&C ltem;numbcr G&C Medm^g bate:

Page 1 of4
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2. SERVICES to: BE PERFORMED; llicrsmc of New
Hampihirc. aciijigvlhrouglv-'lhc 'agency identifiedvin-block l.~i
("Slate"):, chgagt^ icpntrador, .idciiti in- block |.3
("Contractor") i6:perf6nnrond.thc;Conlrado jwfprrn.ihc
work or sale of goods^or: ̂dth, idcntlficd and m^
described ,in:;thcfatinchcd is, incorporate
hcrciij by rcrci*ncc'("i^rviccs").^

3- EFFEefivE.DAtE/COMPLETIp^
3.1 Notwithstanding any,^provision of this Agreement to the
contra]7, and subjca.-to: the, approval'of the Govemor and .
Executive Councii'or.the Sjate of New Hanip^ire,,if applicable;
this Agreement; and aJI'bbii^tions of ihc parties hcrcun^r, shall
become cflwtivc on ihe'datc the Gb.vcnior and', I^ecutive
Council approve, jhis Agreement, as Indicated in block 1.1,7,
unlcss.no such approvuJ:Ls.rcquircd; in.wHich'casc the Agreement,
shall become cfftxitivc-ori.ihc'.^c.thc'Agrccmcnt is:signcd by
the Stale Agency.a.s shown;ih;block IH 3 ("EltccUvc D^c").;

:'3.2 If the Coninicior-commcnccs; lhc::&ryiccs, prior to the
F.ffectiye batC; airSciytccs pciVormcdiby iHc-iContracior prior to.

..the, Eilfcctivc balc'ShaJI bcipcrfomjcd.al lhc,solc«risk"of'lhc .
.Coniracior; and in'lhc cycnl Uiat ihis Agrccment docs not become,
effective, tiic-Siaic'.^all havc^no liability, ib'-lhc-'Cbhlractor, •-
including- >viihbui -limiitaiion.-j any, obligation ;io pay; the,
Coiuractor "for; any .costs, incurred; or;.-Services pcrfp^^^

./Goniractor must wm^ac;;oll:;Serviccs'by Date
/Specified in^b.lock 1.7.

f COijjDlTipNAL NATURE;0F^^
•Notwilhsiimdih'ig ;any 'provision' of .'this-:. A^mciil .io the..
/Contrary,- all obligiuipnf.-of 'tJic^
'wiihdu'l. limiia'iibn,- ;lh'c .ccmfihuM^^ Hcreund^ are
cbniihgent .'upOij.ihe'^'railab cpniinued aj^bpriatiph of;
rfunds';afi:<wcd';by-$^^^^ federal (tcgis|atly^^^^^
action iliat ^u"c^'; cltminat« 'or pdi'^'i^: modifies the.

• apprbpriaiio''n:pr, ayanabiliiy^orfunding' for this-A^emcni;^
uibScppd. fon^ryiccs^prpyidcd in EXHIBIT:

. "part.-in no. event i^aH 'Uici Siaic-.bc liablcifor.imy
licrcunder.in cxc^oCsucKa^il^ fuj'ids.. In iJic
cycniVof'a'rt^uciipn^ pf iCThinatipri'pf'app^^ fV-pds, thc\
.Simc shall Hayc.'iHcVnght.wXwkli^
bwbnip avaHablc.vif^.cycrif^d:^^^^ Hayp.ihcfi^

;. icmxinaic:'rhc,Se!7ic«jun«icr/tiiis
.^vihg/thc>Con,tnictpri'notiTC;:pf^su
'Tli'e ;Slaic'shV|'n6t'b^c. rcpdirra io transfer. '
accpurirphsp'urcc;tp:.^c, Account jdcntlfi^ the.,
event Tuhds'.lhihat Accpdm'^'^roduc^

& CONTRApT PRlGE/rRiee ElMITATJpN/
FAYMENTr"

,5.1 :rhe,Co'niraci pncc;m^^ and u^s.of^ym -
arc -identified: and mprc 'part^icularly/dcsCribcd;;^ G ,
-vyhich is i.ncpi^raicd'h^m
,,5:2 'ITic paynicnt 'by./.ibe^StatCiP^^
onlyiand the, complete'reiin.burschicnl.fp all
expenses, of whhtevCT'nahjrc ihcufrt^.by'iliep^^
pcrfoTTnohcc he'rcof,. and':shall ,bc the <^y :^d the complete

■vcoinpcnsatlon .io the Cpniracior-forfhc'^rii 'fhe-State slialf
/have no liability lo-.ihc Gpmt^tof-pihcr-ihan.'tiic cbn^
.•5:3 The Stale fcsciVcs.ihc ri^rto.,bfr^t- from an'y ampunts:
bthcrwiscjp^yablc toyiiic Go'riwctPrrunder'thi^
liqii'ldaiedvaniounts/requir^ iof IS.Ii. RSA -:80:7
.lhrou^,RSA/8b:7-c brany bthcf/prpyisionof 1^
.5.4 Notwiihstahding ahy/pidvisibti in this..Agrwmemjp."die-
.cpntraIy^a^d notwitJistahding u'ncxpccicd;circumsiah^^^
cycnl shall the total of iill paymcnLsuutKprizcd. orpciually made-

" hereunder. exceed the Price'Limititiion sct forth' in block 1:8:

bi-GOMPEUANCE/uYCbl^RAGTORAv
AND WiGGLAhONS/EQUAL
ppppRTUNrtVi
•A'l In connection with- ihe;pciT6rmance.,or; lhc . Scn',iccSi-" lhc.,
Contraclor'.shall comply with' all applicable, sia'iulcs,- laws'. .
regulations; .and.orders bh.-fcdcrai,';.staic, county .pr-.municipal
authorities which- impose :any obligalibn or.'.duly upon ,the
Contractor, including,ibul,not'limited.Ip.-.clyil righLs.and,equal
cn>ploymcnt'oppoflunity:Iaws..,Vn:i^diUof^ if this Agrwrnicni is-
funded in any pah by monies of ihc'Uiiilcd Staic^,-Uic Gbiiiractor;
shall complyuH^ airfcdcrai cxcdifiyc.ordcpA^ .regulations.
and .statutes: and with ahyn]lcs,.rcgulaiibn.<an'd guidelines as the
Siiatc,or. tiicfUniied; States issu^
■the, Contractbr shall oto.cbmply widi;ail applibab
prppcj^'.laws;
6.2 During the tcmi of this Agrohncnpikc:<^'trM
discriminate-againh'cni'plpy'ecs-ibf.ai^ cmplbymcnl
bccaiisc: of,race', cOtor, rcIigiohvercci'i^e; scx,;hwdicap,-sexual -
oricntaiicrn; dr .haXibnai.priglni^d.wiji:^ action to
prevent ̂ cH discfimihatloh;.
6:3.;.1he,Gbouactpr„b^<^:tO;i5erniit'ihc^S^ Siatw./
access':iQ'any.bf:ih"c/C6niracip^^^ accpuriK.fb'r.
the piihip^of ascc^aininp.cbmpliance'wiA^^^
^d 'brdcre; and the ,:cpvcnanib\ • tcrms./^
Agreement;

7., PERSONNEL.
?.l •niVCbnii^tprsKall at. lisow
necessary, lb picrfpnnUic'S^n^^^
a|l;,pci^nncl -cngag^, in. ihe'^&iyic(^,::^mh^ qualifi(:^..lb';
ixirforin; the Service:^: and shall ;l>c prepc'riy licensed and;
plh";crwisc:authbri^ lb "dp sb d^
7.2 UtMws'bthbiyidsc/authpn^'-'m
this; Agreement, and: fon;'a .sjx (6)''.months: afiCT. ihc':
CbniVlcribh patc'In'blpck l;7, di'c Gonira
shall.:, hoi'-pcnnil; any' subcpniTOrtbVrpf'p^ o'r.
cprppratiph with Nylipm. Ii-;ls'cn^gcd;'in:;a- cOmbin^cd.icnbrt. to ;
perfonii thy:Sepic«tpb,ire;ari>^pei^h who
or blTiciai; who is materially mvblycd In ;the-;procurcmeni,_
admihisyaiiPn .;pr pcrfpriitahcc bfi iIiis'.'.Agrc^ .'lliis,

_ 1 1 M*. - ... ■?. .A* ■ - - ...2 M A . K. ... A ^HI

dispute cbriccrnitighhc iriieiprciaiiph'of 'ihls''AgtcthJ.chf ilic-
dontractingpfficcr.'idccisipn^shali .bc.'fiiVaJ for ^

Page'2 of 4
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S! RVENT OF DEFAULt/REMEDiF^
'8.1 Any. one or .more of the •following'"acis;or:omissipns' of the
.GontraclprshalVconstitulcancveni of default hcreunderC^nvent
;of Defaiih"^:
8.1.1 failure lo . perform ihc-';Ser^'ica> "!Miiisft^ ' or- on
^schedule;

, 8.1,2 failure lo submit uny report requirwl hcrcundcr; and/or--
8.1.3 failure lo perform any dthcrcoVcnani, term or condiiion of

•'.Ihis A'grccmcnl:"
•.8;2 Updn:thc^occurrcn(X;of Evcrit of i^fault, ihc'Slatc may
'lakc any bne. or. mbreyoralij of the fpilowihg actidiis:
8.i2:1 give the edn.^ctpr dvvtltteh hoticdsp^i^^^ of
. ̂ fauli; and rcquirtng it tp'bc, rem^ied: withiii
,,a greaicT' dr ic.sser Sf^cifid^ (30) days from the
dai'c ofihc hpticc; and if dtc'Eydni 'of DcrauU;ls;npV
termthaterihiS'Agreemehi. efr^tiyciwd (2) days aftcrgiyih^ the
Contractor hqticc'of^^^ —
8.2.i-giyetheGontractPda;vmd^npti«^^ Event-pf
Defauli-^and suspending- a|l pavTncnts-t^ be"?made nndcr-ihis
Agreement and ordenng that'the [WrtiohVpf the cpndacl. price
•which' would Pthcrydse ̂ ac^rue' w CpntractoV^^ the
period:fTOm :ihc"date.of iuch notlce'uhtiiisucmtimei'as-A

,detemiincS'lhai-thc 'Cpniracior has-curediihc" Event of'^
ishallheycrbe'paidtpthe
• 8^23 givc^thc ConLi^cior aiwriUcn notice specifying the Event of
bcfauU-'ancI,Set ofT.against'any;olhcrpbligalions the State; may
owe to the Gpniraciorahy dimVagcsihc Statc sufTera.by reason of
any tvein of Default; arid/or- " , , . "f ^ , ,
'8.2;4:givc ihc Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of.
Default^, treat the -A^cemeni as breached," tenriinate: thC'
(Agrpemcnt and pursue anyiof its remedies at law of.tn cquily; or
■i»_th. , , , , _ ,
;8^3. NoTailureby. the;Stale io enforce.pny.provisibnfHereof afler.'.
aay.Evcnt'pf-pefauit shan}i^;deeniedia;waiver oEhs righls with
ire^rd io;,lhal'-Event of.--Defaulti ;,or«^any sub^qucnt 'Eycnt o^^
:l5efaulh ^No:e.xpress fai!gre io:cnforcc tmy Event of Default
.be decmed a waiyer;of.the.ri^t:of the'Sfete to.ejifbit« eaclvand
; all of the provisions heiwf upon.any'.-furthci; or ,othcr.:Event-of
--I^fauU on ihc;pjui:,of ihc Gontracior.'

;;9.t;erMinatiqn-
;9.-l Npl>vith.s|andihg-paragraph 8;,thc;;Stalc,.niayi id ilsysolc
discrciidn ■ 'tctrhihatcViiyc Agreement Tor ,^y reason,- in whole .or
in paii^ by ihliiy'03P)daxs wrjiiei hpticc ,tp.-thc Coriira
thdiStatC'Iscxercisihg-lispptlpiriTO^^^

/.9.2 In.theveyerit-of ah'^'ehrly^teiTnina^ for
iahy fea^h ,other-'than; :tbc;;c6mpletio^ the.
.'Cbhtractpy 's.hbH; at .the S.Uite,'s. discreHd^^^ the
.GdntidctingOlTlcer,"n9liaterdian.fift'een ^
/drictTnihati6rii a reRqrt^("teminatipn;R^ in
,d«ail all- Serfdces-'perfonn'ed; ̂
dhd Ih'cludijig ihe^datc'pf tenniriatipn, The-fpidi^ subjwt.iTiatter,

^ eptitcot and 'number pf copies p.t' thc/Tcmiiriatipn RCpo^
-^be idehiical to.those pr^ Report des^bed in the atiadicd -
EXHIBIT B. In addilibh,-:dt thC Staie.'s di:^

, shall;:;Wiihih 15 days of nbticc.dfdarly tenninati6n, dcvc)bp.a^

Page A

.submii.io ihc Siatca Transition Plan for services under-the
Agreement.-

ibl DAtA/AGGESS/CONinbENT^^
PRESEpVATtON.
10.'l As'uscd in.this'Agrccmchl^'.lhc.wortJ -'^daliiy-shali,mean all
information ajid things dcvclppcd opobialncd diiringThc.

.performance of; or acquired of developed by reasomof, this
AgrccmcnLJncluding, but not llmllcdTo;;al['studies, reports;
files,- iomiulac; surveys, inaps.-cHartsv-sound'recorfings, video
rccoTdings,'■"pictorial reprod'uctions;.'dfawjhgs; anaIyscis,'gf^Hic.
repi;escfitatlons, compu.tcrprpgramSj-',cprnputef^prin|puisrn6ic^
l^ers,; membninda, papers, "and,dpciimen^^ w.heihcf;'
.finishcdpr uni'mished/
ibJi Ali.daia aiid^^y propertyAvhiclrhas.l^i received
the State or purchasi^ wiih-f^^^^ fbf piut purpose

: uhdej;.diis Agreemerit, shall be the
shidl be retumbi to the State:ui^n demand'dr. iipdh-term
of this Agrccmeni foranvAreason;. ' . '
lO' j .Confidchliaiily of data".shalf bc govemcd by.;N;H. RSA-

''chapler9l-A'or.'oihcrc.\isuhg law. Disclosure" of dala^rcquires-
prior'wrrtten opprovaiiofth'C'StnlCr.

i I. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION
pcrformancc'of ihiVAgrccmcnl the .Gonlraclor-is •in:oll,respects.-

Sim-'-indcpcndent conifacior,-,and, is neither- an vagcntrvnor-an;
einpioyee^of the State; Neibier the" (Contractor; odr any^oPits "
.Officer^-empl6yecs.;agents;or;tnembcrs shall, have, authority.jo
bind the State or,reccive.ariy. bciiqfi^^wor1«eR^f'conipensatioh or
other emoluments provlded by-tlie Stbte to its employees.;

11. A^lciNMENT/bELEGATlbNbju'B
12^The.Goirtractor shall: not assign.-'or.totlicrvyise transfer any
ihicrcst'in.this Agreement wititoulthC;prior,written;noticc;'.which
shall bciprovided to the Stale:af 'least;fifteiai;("i5T^

. ihe^assig^cn'ti «md aAvntfen consenhoTihc.S^^^^ puiposcs,

.of';this parngfai^i'- a Ghange.'^ pT^ContrOr shalG-constitulc,:?
• assi^rneht. ".Change lof " .Control" mcams? (a) rnc/gcr, :
consolidatidn;:ora transaction or-^ncs;ofrcluic'dlrah.saclioru;;ih

, wiiich U:. ihijd.'.party, ; together wiih""'ilS;'affili^c^'/becomcs :,lhc -
• direct, or. Indirc'cL.Owncr.of'fifty pcreeni;(50%);[or- more Of tJic !
volihgsRhjircs;.()r similar'.equity. lnlcfe'st.^^9r;: combliicd',.voting;'.
p)owcr;df.ihc:Goninicior,.of (bj!ihe;^lc,of'al|.'6f'Subsiahilaliy all'
of the assets .of the'Cdntrac^^^^^
12.2 None oi^ dieT;^iylciKV-s^^^ l^stibwbtract^-'by

• Cpntracipr without pridrAvrifteh noti^ h^
Tlie,State is.entitied tq copiespfalT^bcOnfracts;a^^^

-r.agreemcnte^Md'Vhajl hot be/bbuhd by'^^^^
ih:a subcdntnict^dr OT,?^signmcht
f^y-

13. INbEMNiFIGATION. UhltsspihcAyiSc f^ law-,:
the Gphtractdr.shail/indcmhify.iid-hbld^^M State;' its-
dfllcefs and, erhployecs,. frqin- and against^; finy^imd all:.clauhs,-.
liaBiliiies'ahd.'cps^ffor.any.persbnafihjii^^^^
psuCnt.of copyright ihfi:ingcmchudr.OlKcf-cUimsi^crtc^^
the State, its.Officcrs pr.cmplpycp, which'ansc dutpf (of which'
may-be.claimed, 10 ari.se put oO the;acts or omission'of the,-;

of 4
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Gon^Clor, or.subconiraciorH, ;mclucling-but 'not.'limiicd Ip. llic
negligcncCvrccklcSs orahtcnlioniillconducL "Tbc-Slaie.shall npi

\f>c'1iablc/Tor any ctjsts Incurred by ;ihc..C()niractor.ari.sing-undcr
;lhis.paragj^h!3:.NotwllhslandlngtheTorcgoing,n6llilng herein
-coQiam^ shdJ be deemed.io constitute a waivcr.of the sovereign
limmunityof ihc Starc;.wh1ch.immunity.ishcrcby,rescrved toAe
.'Stater'^this coycnarit- in paragraph 13 shall ^survive: the
icrmtnalion of iiiis Agreemehl;

;I4- INSURANCE;
i4;-l';. Ilic-ConiraclPr-.shalh-ai^'iis solc: expense; - obtaih-.and
.continuously maintain- .in .-ibrce:. and shall, ^uire -any
•subcontractor, or assignec;tO;;obiain and- maintain, in.'force,- the
tbllowihg insurance:
. 14; I ci-.cbmmercial general liabiliry insurance against all claims
ot bodily ■injuryv;.death: or. prppert>'-dam^c,- imaraoimts of not
, less, than'$ 1^(^0,000 per; obcurrence .and, $2;b6d;6o6raggregate
•;orcxccss; and'
l4;I-;2 special.cause;of lossjCoverageifornrcovcnng all property

•subject to sdbparagraph'.10.-2 herein^ in tm.amount^nol Icss^ than
'•80®*^ of the.whole replaccmcnt.N'aluc of the proper^'.;-

1.412-iThc policies dcscribcd4h.subparagraph.'14'.'j -hcrcin-shallibc-.
on policy fdrrns.and-cndorscmCTits apph)ycd-forjUSC:ih,lhc Stotp

.of New'Hampshire by the,bI H Pcparimchl-pf lhSui^cc.vand
issued by-insurcrs licensed;in.lhc',Siatc;of;Ncw.'Hami^hirc^
l4i37lTi6 toniracior shallvibimlisiy tp'-ihc-.fe^^^

"idcnlificddn'block .1.9;.pr hispf.Hcr suc^
insurance for;-all insurance,- Quired IddiJcrv tHis Agi^ment;

•'.Gprilracipr sliail also furnish to the.'Cbnii^^^
in blpckU ̂ ?y,or• his br hcr.'sucpes^r.vwftm
for ali:^ewai(sj of insurance requlred.uhdCTihi^ ■,

' later. than.;tcn'i.lb) days .prior;.to.1Ad;: idate -df each
.insurance.-policy:-, 'Ibc certificates)' bt.Mnsufancc andr^My
fcncwals thciepf tdialLbe attach^^

. rcfereiice..

:\i5f\yoRKEf^> 0;jyi?E>(SAtfp^^ ^
IS'r.iByisighlng iliis^agre^cnd.thc'Cpidra

j-and ivaraahLsthaiiHcpohinictbris lh;w
.,fT^;.ihc.rcqiiircnic'nis)ofNd;i:.RSA/chap^^^
'CbmpcivtoJio^^ ^
1.5.-2l"" Td thcdxicni the Cpntracipr is sub^

^Ixiquife any ̂ subcpntriwjp^
Cppymefit. of, Gom^n^idn in ronnectiOT^^
' activities which the'person propo^

Airwment/iliciGpntractprshaillW
identified mdlpck, 1 ,.9;pr,hisbfhe^^^^^^
Goini^hsaHph, in'the m -N.H. .^A .ch^

, 28 i-A and,,.any(:'app(icabie,
attached \dnd:;areihcp^ratcd here by^refe'rchce. "■The . State.
shall hot b«: riKponsible fpf'/pa^ent; ofiiany'' W9I^e^s^
GprripenMtion premiums preform
Gohtra'clori-.br any subcbnnactor.-prl.,cmp^

-which'might drisw. undw-;applicable State!pf-jN'ew
Wprkdra- - CpriipcnMlibn laws iii. cpnhci^iph: ;wilh" ihc,

-.performance pf the SCrvlic-Cs'iindcr.l^

•l b.- [S0TIGE. Any police b>^8:pdrt^^he^^
.sliall bc dcenied to;have'been duly.deliypr^'pr'g^
;bC ihailing by t^rtified mail, postoge pretMldl in^
,Pbst.^Ortl^^addrcssed.to the particsi-aiihCjad^esscs^^^^^
biocks-1.2 and. I ;4.'herein.

17. AMENDMENT..i-his A^cement;may be;ainended,..waive
or discharged on^, by an iristrumentiiV^wniingysigned by-thc.

-parties hereto-arid only after,approvalIpf.sucH/arncndmcni.
waiyer or-di«harge by the.'G6vemor:and:;Fj<:ecudve Goimcil.of
ihe State.of New Ilam'pshire unless no sucHppproyal'is,required,
underthc.circumstances-pursiiani.to.Siiate la\y,' rule:or,polic)';,--

18; GHOIGE OF^LAW XnDT^RUIV^ j^grcchicni ̂ hall
' be, govemcdi intcrp.rcted and conslnicd' in;;accprdimcc:, wiih-lhc ;
•.laws of the/Slatc.'pGis'ew/Hampshire,.and;'is binding; upon.and;
inures to the benefit ofiHe.piiriies and'theihrc-spcctiyc succcs-spre

-and'assigns; TTic.woiding u.sed in AiS'Agiwm|^i.lS:Ac.)yprdlhg.:
chosen by'the parties .1(1 cxprtss"lihcir. mutual inicni-lM
prconkruciidn shaU;bc,appli«l agaihsjbr^^^^^^^^
-Any. t^llpns ansiiig put.pf this; Agreemcnti^alf^^^
. maih.Atncd'in Ncw Ham^hifeSuj^tioriGdurt^^
.exclusiyejufisdialohVtheredf

I9l GpNF£iCTiN0/^fE ■ ^ln:/ihc ^C^(mt.y;of 'a ^CM^icr
l^vecn/the tejins-.bf this.Po?" fonri (hs'modifi^

.rA).{uid/orat0chmCT mid'amendmbhl tlVcrcofi'/ih
P,:3,7''(as'modified lh.EXHIBn*'A)

<20. THIRD'-PARTIES. "Ihc-parties; hetem mtehd tpi
benefii-:;ahy • itiirdy^ Ais/AgrejOT

• conshbed tb/cohf^'aity/siich-beh

. 21. HEADINGS^ the .headings iHrouglVpui.iHc/Ag
for''fcfctbhbc'purp6s^}'on1y,.-,and- thb .w^^
shall in no wajyi^.held ip:cxplaiifv,m
ihicfprcmtion, cbftsiraCtabh.oir/mcaiii
Agreement.

2i SPECIAL, provisions: Addiliofml;yprr^
proyislbhs MtfpAh in;ihe;"attoch^
hcreih'b'yyrcfcrChcc^^^^

23. SEyERABlLirrY...lh thC.cvehl'wy.pfthc'pr^^^
A aPcni CTt brc: h cTd^ by
cbhh;pr>;; lb.'h:hy;staic br federal law;/ihc;re^^^
this'Agn^ment will..remain.lh.fu

24. ENTIR/R'AGRREMENTfThis.A'gVwmchtywK^^^
execut^ Tiutnbbfiprcpuhtcip^s, each shall b'e':
deemed ̂ ■'ah^'"ofigH^'a!, constitutes the • enbrei/agreerh^^ imd,
undcreAnding Iwiwce'n. iheypiiirlics^ /and supersedes;/,a pribr;
agrbcmcnis and.uhdcrsiahd resect to,ihcs'dbje^
KcrebF.'

Page 4 of 4
GohtTactbflnitial

Dale;''////3?/>^



NlfWHAMPSmrtK;^

EXHIBIT A

SPEeiAL PROVISIONS

1. Subpara^dph4'.i5-oflhc-OcncrarRrbvisionR,-shall;'not.appl^^^^ agre^erit.

2. Onipr bctore;the;datc.se^ l,7.;ortHpOenerai,ProyjsionSj
Sial"c;ah"jiidC|)wdcnt/audiiort^
siiin'ding::\sHlH,lhc,siai^ aW

i. This audit shall be conducted ! accordancc;with.the,audit;requiremehts.of,'Office of Slrategio
lniiibHves,(pSj) Circular 2

4.- Thii{uu(Jii rc^rt;sliali'incrudc?a.sch!^ulc"df,reyenu«.i^d^^^
ail,xxpcn'diturc"s,during:dic GdniractoV'^sTisCal year.
proccSsto clioosc a:qualificd<financiai auditor: ailea^everyjfcurycars.^

audiK shall beTdiSvardwl t6"QS,l.;:J^c1audjt:.shall be fo
i^ceipl by the agcncy,-accompanicd.by un^aclidh plan , forcach.firidihg or questioned cost;

!lete,thefdl[d>ying!frdhvp^i^pfc.9.2-pf;tiie;Gchc«i.P^
d;numlxrbfcppics;d^the.Temijhaiidn>P^

6. Delete,the

arid

described in:E.^iBit.B."

7. ThC'Costsxharged under-'this contracl shaii ix detcirnrncd as allowable under the cost prihciples detailed
in-2 GFR.200 Subpan E-!Go,st Princip^^^^^

8.: Progi^n!and fittahcial, rMpMs/pci^ining byjthciagcncy fpri3,'(three)
:yeare from'tiieVdidC:p0^i'ab,mTssiPn-b'f
Requirements for Records and until all audit fmdings have,?been resolved:

9. 'T1Vc,-fpllpwing,p beiadded^tojtheige prbvisionsr-;

""25/-RES3?RlCi-iPN'PN ApPtTrPNALiFXJNPn^G. Tt :iS uhdPrsidb'djand ttgrocd bctwb^^^^
that n6jjX)illpn.pf.dVdscTurid5 may bc'uscd for thc pujpp^bfp^^^
anyodVerdaw.oftheUnited'StateSv;cxcept"if,authofiz<^:undcr.thaflaw.-''

ip.XLOSE OU.T GE'pGN'I^ Allfiha) rc|Wfts.and;rciriibure^^
.bubtniticd!b;tiyc?Statc^Mlhih\six§';'(60);bai^"pf,the^^^

SCS St-:AMI ILKhibiU A.

Gjwt:-1 g/y.Nl i nss, Coiilractor IniJ.
Cl-DA::«J3.fl44' ' Dale ,(,(713/^
' ' I'Ugc I ofS,



myv HAMPSHIRE OFFTCT OF

EjCHUUtA.!

I^yiSrpNS TO STAJS[pAia> GpPfTIUOTL

Revisions to KohTi 'P-j 7. General Provisions

i,. I. :Scction 4.:pohditional, Natu^ A^ecment is rcpjaccd.a^^^^

4.COr^P|TlpNAl^NATX)REbFAGREE

Norvvithsiandmg any provision of ̂is Ag^emem to the'contrar^^^
^.hcrcunder^.iAcludiiVg'wiihoui |iniltdtion'% partiiundcf-diils
Agre^edi-^cjcipntingcnVi?P:PP.;!Cphlin'iicd.a^^

isubsc^uent'ChMgesipitheiapprppnatip stateorf^^eral'
icgislaliyc.or executive action th'at'reduccS,-clirnInates, or.'6lhenyisC- niodiltcS;lhc.apprpprj«yi

•-availability ofTunding,fdr.this.A'greerncntand;the Scope of;Servicesprovided!inE>:hibit.'B,-S(:»pe of
: Sendees, .in-.v^ho'^ ln.ni6;eyent,sha|l;,tbe:Slale;(»'H^^
-,excess!pfappfdprialW pf'/aya rc4Mctip'n,/te^inatio^^
4ypfppnalcdOT;ayailabl6Tunds!i:lfie;$teic^haR
Become a\'ailabl6;4fcy'cr."Thc,'Statc;shall,l;iavc-thCrri|ht;ib;rcdu
this Agreemenfimmediatelyjuppn giving ihdGbntractorrnolicc of such reduclionjterminaiion'or

;jnodification: The State/shallnptibe required .tp transfer^^
.lh'cVA«xpujni(s),idchlifie4 iy.blppk^rib'pTtKeGcnCTall^NWsipnsy^Ac^^^^
:dccpunt .iirthe evcnffunds are

l !2..Section 9. Termihation.-is arnended by adding theToilowing language:'

temiinate thyAgiw

:9^:4;;ln the:event;ofcarly'tcrniinaEbn;'the Conbttctor-shall; within 15. days ofnptic
- tcmiinatibnvdcyeipRahd submit-tp.'thc^^ plan-fpr seryice^ under the Agreement,
ihciudirig^buinpl-limited,iy,identifying the.preseni;andTuiure'np^
.piider,the;Agrcemcht ahd'Cstablishes'tdp^^

.9:5 Cbhtj^ctorshali fully cooperate iwitii thc State and shall prorapily.proyid detailed
•informaiipn to:suppprt dte Trahsibpn plan inclu^^^ liniitcd-to: any informal
• i^uc^c^'by-thc-Sthtc.related tpThc't^ aiid I'rahsitiptV PiaiiJ.and
|)rpyidc'pngpingcpmmuhi(:aiipd.arid rdvisiphs:df:UiyTra^^

9;din the event,thal>scryiccs.undcrThc AgrccmcniiJnciii4ing,bu( not: limited lP;clicn'ti> receiving
■.ser\'ices:under.,the.Agrcementare'transiti6ncd to-haYing'iservices dellvcrcd'byjanothcr cntity. including
conttacted providers braheStaie/tHeifyhlractpr^^^

:;^n>ic^:iivth" ..

9:7 "ntc Cpntn|ctor-sh«li'csiab!isli:a mcihpd.of.notifying.clicnts and ollicr ancclcd ihclividuais/aboul
the transitioni 'Ihc Contractor shall;include ilte proposed comnuinications in-lts 'rransiiion Plan
-submitted to the State'as'descfibed above.

2..Rehcwal:

SCSSIiASir

(■irant;:t8AAKtlT3SS. (..wMnfclor / r f

CTDA?93.044 Dae -i \ h^fU> V:

I'Ahihils A. A-I, K
C'wMratloi thrtiajyT"? I'. /

Dae . i I n
I'itsc lofV



• 2J v^rhc •f^partJTlcnt'
contlngoitiupon satisfactory dcHvcty of ;«r\'lcesv aya
ond'approvai of {he Executi ve Cqunci

agreement f6r up;ld two years,
fable funding. NVritteiragreemcnt of the (wrticsc

,SeSSfvA.S2!

^i';aht;l'8AAN
crRM-ys.im

u;>aiibii$A.A-i.B«rt:

X.^miriic^V initi:
OMc'-r n \i Izg. .f
i'afiC3.or?



NEWHAMPSHifR^^ INITIATIVES

EXHIBIT B

SCOPE OF SERVrGES

TTie-Coritractof agrees to .proYici^..Senibr'Energy%;^^sista^
uidiVidlwlSj iifi'd agrees lb"peTfoWail;such ̂
program in accpr^ancc with,thC:principjes'^d'ob^ forth in the Fiiel AssisianceTrogram-
Prdc^uresManuaj'^d; other guidancc^.^.^detcTO

Senior Energy Assistance.Sei^ices (SEAS) >yil!,Se;def!ncd;tp lnclude^^^

1. Outreach; eligibility determination; and'c^rtification of SE/AS a

2.: Payments directly':to
a.. RciniburscnicntTor-gpOdSt^d'^^^^

3. Emergency Assistance in the foim drreiidbursementToi igoods or ser\'ices.

SCS SPAS21 >>;hibi^'Ar/VJ i B
O^lflSAANH-nSS CoBMawimiL^
crbk: ')3.'044 ^
■  P0£c4oI5?



^NEWilAMPSmRE OFFICE OF STI^TEG IG INI^

exhibit;-^

.'PAYMENTTE

jh consiidcrafion pf tiiC:Saiisfactoo' pcrformcmcg pf-th^ ^e Staie- the State
,,agrees to'pay :6vertp;theC6ntrac{brthe:sum:pr$J,0
"fluids^)'

The-fol 16win^ 11 .be aulhdnTCd:

$ 10,59.7:00 for; Senior Energy Assisl^ce^^ :(SEAS )

■ The datesVforThis,•coniraci-are:up;on,Governor;;and'Executiye Cp'imcil approval ihro
:2ti22r"""" ■ ■ "

Approval,tp\db1igate;diefatK>ye-awardcd-^
Iriiijatives?to Uie:Gonto rReimburscraents;wiU'be,^\adc to.theCon
dpcuinciiiatipn;of ,cash needl .pisfei^scment ofthcsc..-^
.accb^anc.c;Witia!p^ .csiabjiihcd'by ̂ cjStalc.

SGS SiiAS2! Ilxhibiis A. A-1 . R

Gnirii; mAANHpSS Coitimcmr Iniliit?
Cro"A;9i6w ' Diiic' flhsi^

Paae 5 ol'5.
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Al/rEEUVATIVE I =.,FOk GRMif^lsg^

. US .WEi>A Ra;M EN'r-^
us jbEFARTM ENT: AF.7irVi'i irri-'rirS'iv'L

trSDEPARTMElV^^
• US ̂DEPMTM ENTiO F

were

:I07,'l?ieas;antSti-cct|fJohnso_n;;Hafc

M ■ •^3hlfshmg^ii^brj56ihg,drug.^

F^jicil^br m^nlm in8;aiiii^e;irrcc- lyqrkpljice;

m  .'^^'^:W'>^H'Cs-lllot:ma>^.be:im|^sc^uf^•^m^^^
amthcVwpVkp • •■ • = ^

^giyen afcopjofrthc bialctncm. requir^^^^^^^

.cniplqymenviindcf "

*w

W.ExKfeDlhnriJ' .>,. . ^ ..:,\jjj/r
:timn.,^ieiAA'Nlh^S^ .^,>nfn'Clor.1n.i.als;^yL_^
'•a-:iyAW3:U44- ••—•' Mhtlz^.'L^  ' '••- iteior?



AI iTEltNATIV K V. KS.p.TO

W;

'"-.'..•.^.■•.-•.'>7.:iiV-, ■s.y,- S'V CONTRA GTORS
r GONTMCTORS:

US DEPARTMEiV'rxGF AGRIGULTURK^GP
"US'DKPART^^

i^briiifiwtion^numlw

•amcndcd^ot'.V - , f'J.jr' , ,

laW'Cnforcc^t^

''^?Hj-»S;?-S^,'*ai[lj;!cjT6rtyd.b6'tniriueJ^
^bf; paragmphs;(a^;(^;|c^ ■ -^ ' ■ ^

l^lac.c;<)t',Rcrf6mVartcc:(itrcct.a<idrc^?6U^^
63 Community Way i' ^"" ■ '^•' * • - .... -.
Keene, NH 03431

□■.iA^erc orejworlcpla^ idcntifii^iKSn!,,

-Soutliwc^erh^G^
G^niractc^^^

n--': ,,'j- I'y'. . • x< -Vf*-;" iv-
;Jphn A7.^Mannmg-p:Gnicf^-Executiye.:Q|fic"or
;v':'•".--» i-'v-j- t.wtif.;

1/

.•PcniJdG'bvcrcd

t/Ii'%h6
Rftic
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Gninurx'i(CANViji}'SS-
OTDAii/W-oiH^
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NE\y HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF ̂I^TEGIC IlVITIATiyES

STANDARD EXHIBIT E

■TlVc Cpnit^ctoridcntifi !;3 pr'thc;.G(:a)cral Prpvisjoiis agrees,to c'onVply.wiiH'
'319 of RuBlicUiwyroi-liiGpycnimeni'WideGuidan forNew-Rcstncii^^ ^d3 iiUiSC. 1352,-
and further agnxs to Imc the Contractor's representative, asidcntificd in Sections 1.11 and:i. 12 of the General
Provlsions.cxccuic.thcTpilowihg.Gcrtincai

CERTIFieA-nON REGARDING LOBBYING

USDEl^TME^^r GF lIEALTI^ AND HUMAN SERVICES-GbNTRACTORS
DS DEPARTMENT OF EDUGATTON - bONTRACTORiS

US'DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULtURE - CONTRACrrORS
US: DEPARTMENT^^^G^^

:US;DEKiRTMiENT;OT^

Programs (indicate applicable:program covered):
SEAS,

Confiaei Pcnod: j PocciiitVer TiS, 2020.iid Scpicni bcr 3Pi-2022

tlie undersized,certifies,;to the best of Juiowledge.and belief, thai:
(1) NpvFedmi appropriated ("unds.'have been paid or wllf be onpn.bcjiialfpr.lhc und^

|WH;ph:fbr.ifVfiuchcihg.^^ aii;dfTiccr;;dr..cmpldyice of:
ConZesSi ah;;pfificcr.'pr crnplby^^f C6ngr^s,.or an Z^plbycc 9^^^
with'the awii^hgWany F^ciaJ cbhtrtct^i eoniihua'tid.nj rchcWal,^^^
FcdtTal contract,^grariliiloani^or coopCTalivc agreement (and,by:spccinc'mciUion,sutwgranlcc;or sub-
conlraclor):

(2) If any.funds other thanF'cderafapprppriated-fiihds.have been.paid orwiihbe pald to any.pei^pn-for'
influchcmg;praltc^ plDccr'or;cmp]oycc.of:any:aZncYr?f''^?P?!^^^^^
plficcrpr:Cinpldye6.df^C6nz,bss; or.Zptnployw ofa^
EcdCTaljdontjractj^grMi, ldaif;for;(^Zfaifvc;agr^
cpntracidO^j tlfe uhdersigried:sha Stand^ F6iTh;LLLv;-'W to.Rezrt
Lobb>'iJig; in accordance Aviih its.instruction^ attached and idcntiified as Stan^rd Exhibit E-1.

(3) -T^c undersigncd'shaii requirc that dic'danguage orihis certification be ihcludcdJh'thcaward.'documcni'for
sub-a>v\Ti^sai;ali;licrs:(inc|udmgsubcpnttacts,,sub-zotils; ̂ d;cpniracts-,imdcr:gyan,iSf Ip^
copjKraliyc;ag_f^mchis);Z,d>lhat all Su

■This ccrtificat(ph is'a.maicrialjrcpr^'rilatio.n .of faci upon-which rcHiinZ"W^.placcd''\^^^
made or entered iritpi Submisslpn pf.th'is cehific^idhjs a'pre^r^ulsiteTorm
impps'i^ by S^libp ;i352; ji^ Any person wHofaiis id fiic^dic>rcquircd w
subject to.a;£lvl!»^'y S lO^OOO and not more tiian li 06;p(k) for cach.sucHTailure:

/Cc«i/ncA-> Chief Executivebfficcr.i
Cp'htrYctbH S; Rejare^iiia

John;A.'Manning ,

,Gphtractdi: • s: Rtprc

I yhSH^o
Gbriiraclbr Name • Dale.

r'37 lA-hibils n Uiru M
Oranl'lXAANirn.SS
a-l)A#93.bl:l

Conlruclor lnilials;-<
l>otc:

•Pagc.Jof?



NEW HAMPSmREiPFFTGE OF STRATEGIC imTIATIVES,

STONDARD EXHrnT^F

'fTic.Conlraciqfildenlified IJ ,of."the'GeherarPr6\Msi6ri"sragreef
Fxcculisx Office orihe Pntsiderilj ExTOuiiyc-OWer-12549 and!'45 GFR'P}irt 76:rcgarding;Dcbanncnt,vSuspcnsion-
and Qlhcr Rcsponsibiliiy MaUcrs, and furtHcrvpgnxs lo have thcContnwiors representative, as identified In
-Scctiohs 1.1 Fjwd 1.12;of(hc:;Gcneral pfbyisionVcVccutc^thc

CERTmcATION REGARDINGDEBAjRMENTvSUSPENSlON,
RESTONSl'tolTy MAT^^RS PRWlARY COVERED T

rnsiructionsffyr Ceiiijicatiqn

(1) By>sjgning~and;submiltiiiig'(his pfqpdstjfXcq^ |Wrticiparit\is p^
certifiMti6'n:setdut'bel6\v;

(2) Tlic, inability.pf a person to provide,the.ccnificalion required below will iiot';ncccssarily.;rcsuli in dcnlal of ,
participation |njhis;cpyer^ transaction./Ifnccessao^ the prpjSF^cti^^^^
opNvhy ilVcanhot provide: thexertificatioD/iiriie cemfi^^^^^
witli;thc NH.Oiftlce^^of Su^tcgic'Iniiiatiycs'dclcnn s^VctiicflO cntcr into'this'trahs^^ However,
failuredftKeJprospective.primiry' p^icipaht.tb furnish a certiflcation;6r an c.^lanaiidn^sHallbi^ualify Vu
j^rson.frorn.j^icipaiibn'in UiiS'transaction.. , ^

(1) tHic ccrtificauon-in'lhisoiausc'js^a material ipprc^lalipn.of fact upon.which rcliaricc^w
:dctcrmincd,tp;entcnintb)tbjs t,rprijactipn./if prosp^bye'pnnia^^^^^
kitpwingly ibndered;^!^onj^us'cert
Gbyenniieh^OSI-inay.terhiih^biibisUt^

(4) Tiic prospective primary' parbcipant'shall provide iiTirncdialc^v.Tiitcn.iioticc 10 ihc;OSI agcncy\to.whoni Uiis
proposal (conb^ct)Js submitted if at any time the pro.spcctrvc primar>'-participant Icams that:lGi;ccrtification

; as used in tKl.s cljuisc, havc^thbrmc^.ings;Mt^outjn die Definitions and.Cbyeragc^^
implemcntmg.Execulive:^der.i2549::'45'GK^ Scc-tHe attacht^dcfiniiions."

($) TTic prospcciiyc pnmmy parbcipant agi^ by,submitting this proposal (conti^ct)-^at; shoujd^
. covered iransactjpii^ ̂ "bnlerod inlb^ It"'^ nbt knpvyjhglybnter iiild an'y lbwcr
per^n who is:dete!^i>us][^ii^e<ih;decia^
cpvered transat^ionv u^^^

(7) 'I^e prospective piimaiy participant.fuither agrees by subraitting diis proposal lhat;it.will includeUic.clause
tilled ''Ccrtifica{ion:Rcga^ingOc^ymcnt;, Suspcnsionrlncligibiiil^^ Exclusion - Lower Tier
Gqyercd;TranM^ipiw;";pibyid modification^ in^alJ IwycrUierW
all-^liGiiatipnsTpf lowc^^^^

';(8) A padicipdnttinAa^y^^d.iransa.ciibA may rCiybf^in a cc^
. coyercd^ransa^ibn'that^^^^ dcbafri^i-siL^pend^ inci igiblej br.invpluntafil}', excluded from'dicVcovcrc
transactioni.unlcsstit knows that the certficatibn is erroneous. A p^icipant may decide thc method aiid
fr^uency by \yhich jj. detcrmincs;the eligibility of i^ principals': Each;participanl may,jbut;is nol^^i^ujred to,
chwk-thcNonrpf^Lubmcri,t>Lisi,(oiVexclu

(9) Nothing coritflincdtih|hcTpfCgping sK^ lo require c.stabli.shmcnt of afsyVtbm.pf i^^^
to render.in:gbbd^faitKThe,ccrtificationTrequir^ by this clause: The:l:KowIedge and info.miation pta'
participant is not required to exceed tiiai which is normally possessed by a piudcnt pcrson in thc;ordtnary
course of business deaiing.s.

(.10) Excc'plTpr/itbin'iwfctionsnuUionz^^ inslructions,1Pa,partLcipbni:in'b
transaction knowingly;cntcrs'. iritb-aJp^r'tier covered; ti^sactibbw pcr^n who' is suspcndctL 'd^
ineligible, (^".ybluntarily.Cxciu pbriicipatiori'in this trahsactipni in;addition to dthebreniedies.
available to the Federal government. OSI may-terminate this transaction forxausc or default.

P37. li.Khiliili: Pllihi 1! Cdnuactor InbiafSr^T
GrouUSAANimSS- l>ote; .M
CFDA#93.(M4 " Pa£C-i ol'?



CERTIFiCATibN REGARDING DEBARMENT^ SUSHEiNSlbN, A(^D QtffERf
responsibiuty.M

CeWipc^ionkesdrdinsDetia^^
^RespcnsibUity Mailers- Primofy Covered Transaciions

(j) l>c prpspcciiyc primary participa^ the best of iis;k^wj(^gc .m^^^ ii and;itS;,
pnncipats:

(a) arc.hotpfcscntly.defe^ prdpp^ for dcl^mcnt, decided, inc
excluded from covered iransaciions by^y Fcdcral dc^to^^^

(b) haye.not 'wilhiri a'iih'r^year;pen^, prece8ihg.this^prb^Mr(cOhlracV) been
ciyiijudgrnentrendered'agaiihst them for commission of fraud or a cjiminal ofTciiM-inrconnection
with obiainin^ attctnpung]W;obrta performing a publ io (Fpdef^l,'Stare or IpcaTj ffanwciion
or a t^ntracl under a public;tr^,sa«^
comniissibn'orcmbc^JchtCTk die^- to bfdcstructi6n';9f;ro^
niaking.false stalemcnts,<dr receiving stolen'propei^;

(c) |rc hot prc^nili^indicted. for ddienyise cri of civijiy,charge by a goverhmeiUal^
(FcderalyStatc^6r loeal);.with commission of-any of iKc.offcnscs'cnumeratcd-in paragrapli\'(|) (b)
orihis.ccriificaiion^^

(d) Have.not within ajlmre-ycar.pcriod preceding this applicalionyproposul had one or.morc public,,
transactions (Federal., .Sfhte or l<x:al) tcmiinatod for,cauM;or defaulf.

(i) Where the prdspectiye'priniao'.]^ unable to;certify id the^atements ih'iJiis'cdrtifiM^
such prospective parttcipahl shall attach ah cxplanaiibh lo.thts proposal (conifact).

Cc^i/icMion kegardi'/fg Ih incUgibUityjdiid.
Voluntary Exdusidn\'i^wer^

'(T6i^;;SuppF Pariicrpanis)

• By-siting and subm.itiihg;ihis ,!,d\\'crXicr prdpo:Ml '(9Phtfact); thc pr6spcctiye1m
45.GFR Pan 76, certifies to thc bcst of its kndwlcdgc and belief that ii and its principals:

(a) ;are;npt prcscnt|y;dcbaiTCd, sVs^ for dcbarmcnt,.d«larcd,ihcligibl.c;.of'^
excluded ffpmi|Mrticipatipn;m'thisjtrahM«

(b), where the prospecti ve-Jower tier pa^cipant is unable to certify to any of the abovcy such
prospcCbyc;participan|{$hall"attach an cxplanaii this proposal ,(contraciJ:

Th;e'prdspectivc;lpNs;^ei;;tief;'pahicipaht.fiuthef"agi€es bysubmittirig
clausc;cntillcd ''Ccrtjficalioh-Re^idihgii^b'anhchl,;Suspensidru,lneligibilily.^and
TierGoycrcd .Trahsacti6ns,r withouf m.bdiFicafiph'in ail lower.tier.covcrcd ts^isactiohs.ahd irVall solicitationis,for,
lower :ticr covtSj^jTansactidns.-

Chief BxeculivoOlTiccf
Contractor Representative Signature Contractor's Representative Title

John A. Manning. t J j/3 ^
Cdhtractof K'anic. Date,

P37l-xhihiu:l)lhhil!

Gnini'l8AAKJtT3SS

CFdAWlbW '■ ' " IVifjcSof?

Conlractov InUi

'itDale: H n 2o



NEWH^IPSUIRE OFFICE OF STTUTC

STAND^Rb fcxm^iT t:

CERTlFIGATIGNREGARblNG
AMERICANS WITH blSABiLlflES ACT COMPLIANCE

•TlieiCphtractor identifiedMii'^^ 1,3 pf thc CehcrarPrqyisions.agrees by sig^
rcprcscntalivc as identified In^Scdlons IJ I.and j J2^qrihc;Ccncral.Pnbvislons, td:cxrc
certification:-

By signing'and submiittingvtihis proposal (c'bntract),,^e.Gontracl^^^ ^wnablc,cfTprts^
comply wiiH all;a'ppliwbie:p'royisibns'p^^^^^^ pisabilitit^Act o^ IS^O.

Chief lixecutivc Officer-

COTtracip/\5 Rcprc«c Cph^actor's-I^pfcMntatK^e

John A. Marininif

Gontracibr Name Dalc^

r37 Exhibits D thni H

Cjnint ISAa'nhT3SS-
CFD'Atf9j;044

Conlracibr.lhitials;

Date:

PagcG^of?



NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STIL^

STANOAKD EXiliBlT H

GERpFieATION
Pu blic Law 103-1227, Part C:

ENVIRONMENTAL TOBAGGO SMOI^

In accordance wiih

-in any pprtion.of ajiy
■) i birary 'sertMces [o
through Stale'.

•guarantees,
^fuhd^ sbleiyby Medicare or-iyl^icaid lVndSvand^p^\b^
tt^tmcnt.

it'aic or local govcrnmcnls; Federal progiWiis includc^^iahtsv cdopeiutiN'eag
jSj.and contrarts^ 'iHie lawdoes not iapply,to children'sVei7iceS:pit)yi'dcd in'pnvate residcnccs, facilities-.

Tlid aboveJahgiiagc must be included jn any suteaw^s^thatxohtain Rrpy and that-
'all;^ubfg|^lee$;shaiicertify.compiiahce:accplrUih'4ly,Failurc;td;^^ relM'f.
-in the,impositi6h:df axivil mohet^ peihaliyVof up,.fe pCT^day.;

Gh icf Rxcctit ivc Ofllccr'
Cyintnictbi/s.Rcprcscnlalivc Signature

Jbhh'A.'Mannina-

G6riiract6iv's/Reprcscntativc;'!1ilc-

//

Goh&actbf Name Dale

P37.Iixliibiis n.ihru H
Oninl I8AANHT3SS
C:FDAfl93:044

, Cohtmctorl.JUtiab:
Date: > I 13120

Page 1 oCj



'<SEAS Approval to,pblt^te Example Only Exhibit 1

Oato

:AOMINi. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSUR.16 TOTAL'

IC0NTRACTED.8UDGET T-T: '"T^T;•553;035:00:^,::i::;9;676:i5o:Mri"SilSOOTT S5M,M1'.00;'^0;634:436:TO. "I

EXPEGTED BUDGET :553.035:00-- 7;422.1X.X; 5.2X.X ..sx.xi.x .8.4X.4^.X.

PREVIOUSLY OBUGATCD -6.00- 0.00' :o;oo. O.X. . 0.x

ITHIS.APPROVAU^JO OBOGATEf r' . "sss.'Ms.oor'::i::7;422;i5o;Mi...;;..r5-26o:xi:.:T5m.o,o1!:x : 8;4X.'436:00:i.|

TOTAL AVAIUABLE^TO'QBUGATE- '.553.03,5.00; 7.422;1XX^ 5;250;m 5x.xi;x 8.480;43B.X,

NOT AUtHORI^ TO OBLIGATE ■0.00 2,154,000.00 6:00 O.X 2,154iX0.X

BMCA
Oato

ADMIt^^ FA PRCGR^rfl SEAS ASSUR-16 TOTAL'
ICOMTRACTEDiSUDGET^jn-'C::™8T,4o.i:oo,K."',::,ir412;468m.. 1 ::i;om:x^ :r:'^5;6i8:x; s7li570;48S.M; 1
EXPECTED BUDGET 8i;4oi:ro; 1,092;466:X': i;ox.x 75.6M.00 1.2X.48S.X:
pr^ousLy'oblTgated ■;o.oo; O.X, .tD.X. . .  O.X O.X

iTHlSiAPPROVALiTO OBUGATE?: .-"ZT^Sir-wiiool"'~O;092.W:X2.':"7.'',i;ox:oor iTfrTSisisixr*:-T;2M.''485;OOf.cl
TOTAL AVARABLETOOBUGATE-' 8i:40i.oo 1.092.466.x :i.ox.x. .75;618.X 1.2X.485:X.^
not AUTHORIZED to OBLIGATE o;oo .320.0X.X O.X 6.66 320.0X.X

SNHS

Date
AOMIN.. FA PROGF^ SEAS : A^uRie TOTAL

ICONTRACTED.BUDGETC"" •• ': ':,l2;179';169;Mr 'r::-iT,ox:xr-. :i22:o7o:x "r.•:2r437?788;X*. 1
EXPECTED BUDGET' '135.549.00 i.8i9;ix;x :i;ox.x •122.070.x v 2.077.7M.X

. PREVIOUSLY OBUGATED ..•0.00 .  O.X ';d:6d- .0:60. .  0.06
iTHIS'ARpROVAD.TOlOBlilGATEr:K  ..«136;'649:00',._,:^ii8i9ji69:w::. x.xioooioor: r^iza-'OTOixii' 2l077;788:X;';;|
TOTAL AVAILABLE'TOOBUGATE ...135.549.00 1.819.169,X ■v.ooo:oo t22.070.X 2.077.7X;X.
f^T ALfmORIZEDTO OBUGATE 0.00 :360.0X:X 6.66- o:x 36P.PX.X

SWCS'

Datia-
ADMINr FA PROGRAM. , SEAS ASSUR16- TOTAL

icONTRACTEDBUOGET;:, ..Z. " ;"U'::70;6«9.00.7v::ii:-4'.248:e99:x"r 7-J7M:Mz. "vea-ezi.x^j::7.1{383;759:00'^'|
EXPECTED BUDGET.-' ,! 70,689.00. . d48.e99.x 7X.X; •.63.62i;X -.1-.D83;759.X.
PREViOUSLYidBLIGAfEO o:x 0;X 0.06: 0.60 o:x

ITHB APPROVAL-.TO:OBLl6ATEv ^70;689:Wr:ii~B946:699:00.-:2 .'/:{63;62i:Mr:̂ ■^:i,083i759:00i.!.l
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 70.689;x :.948.699.X 7X.X-^ ;x.62i.x •i;M3.759:x,
NOT A^ORfe TObBUGATE o;op •.3pq.poo.pp ;o,qo; •O.X 3x;ox;x.

SCCA

Date
admin: -:FAPRbGRM4. SEAS ASSURT6. TOTAL

ICONTRACTED BUDGET - . . ..I: 65;182;W,_:Ĵ i;085i582lX'' '':.'iT.7X;pO/ "C48;63S.X; .. %1V190:149;X -1
EXPECTED BUDGET 55 162.x i '740.X2.X 7X.00 • :.'48;635.X 845,149.x

-, PR^bUSLY dBUGATEO O.X O.XU. . u..6:bo- . -  .o:x. o:x
ITHIS^APPROVAUJOOBlilGATEf «"l55ri82:wir~-'""^740:582:XT-'7 •~.75o:xr: °'48;63s.w: r":845;1.49;00:r":l
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBUGATE 55,1 Six 740.582;X 7x.x: i48.635;X 845.149.x'
NOT AUTHORiZEDTb bBLiGATE ■  d.bo' 345;0X.X o:x 0.x 345,0X.X

TCCAv
Date;

admin.- FA PROGRAM SEAS • i/s^UR.is' TOTAL

ICONTRACTEDiBUDGET^- ' -' • ~'i3i;i9i:oo 'r::--2.247;683:x:i:\«-• TtHOOT.OO. ..i;i3;6i3:x,-:r■ ^2^493,'487.001?!
EXPECTEDBUDGET 131;.19t.OO 1,7X.X3.X ■l;0x:x :;ii3;6i3.x.- ■2,ox.'4e7.x
PR^OUSLY OBUGATED o;x O.X .. ..O.X. ■6.06 . O.X

iTHtSiAPPROVAUTOlOBLIGATE::: i:7M.683:oo: :7;. :'':i;ox:oo:: :^113;613:x^;̂ ^2;006;487;00, "j
TOTAL AVAILABLETO OBLIGATE 131,191^X ;i.7X.X3.X T.OX.X 1.13.613.x •2.0X.487.X
NOT AU^bRliiD' TO.OBUGATE O.X 487:ob6:6o o:x. :o.x. ^V487,0X;X-

c«iilra^
GtaaLl8Ajy«<T3$$' Dam Ujfxld.
CFOArUOM PaO< t 0II



rytw HAiVlKSHIKt UKKICK UK S I KA I KUIC lINrnA'li YLS

standard EXHiBitJ

GERTl>lGATION;REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDINQ AGCOUNTABILITV AND

TRANSPAF^NP'ACT (FEATA) GQMPLIANCE

llic itcdcrai.'Fuqdmg AccouniabilitY aiid Transparency Aci {FRATA): requires primes awardees,: of
individuaJ.-Eederalvgi^ls..equal 10 or greater tlian .$25,000 ahd^a^rd^'OA or;a^ October I, 2010, to
.rcppH bn. daia reialj^^'tp.cxcc^ ^d associaled .fireiHi^ of 525,000 or mpfc.,
irtHc ihitlai aWard l:^16w;;$25i006 buVsuljscqucntJgrani^ rwuit ih'a tqtal avwd cquaj to or
ovef $25,b00,'.tbc,award is subjcct';l6;ihC;FFATA rcix^ing ixiquiremchis^^ Uicdatc of thc.award::

raaccqr^hcc w 170 (f^ppr(ihg:Suba\i^rd dnd.IixecM^^^ Z/^rwa/Vdw^
Dcpartnicht:bf Hdalth^a^ Services (pHHSVmusiTepbrt theTollowing inTonnalibn for any
subaward or-.contract award subject to the FRATA.reporting requiiemcnts;

D" Name of̂
2); Aj^otfn't of award.
3); Funding agency
4) NAICSc(^cforcontract5/GFOA program numlkr forgrants:
5); ITogram spuAe
6) Avy^d title.dd^ripu UipfundingSctipn
7,)' Lqcaliphipf.the CT
8)' Rri.hdiplc'placc
9)^. .Unique;identifier ofthepntityJpU^^
10).Tbtal ;^m|^ns»iion and names of the lop^flye cxccuiiycs if::

a, More ihah^Sp®/# revenues are gpvcniment,-^
Jrwejfues^are'gfpa^^^^^^^ arinUally;and;

b; .Comp^sadori infbrma^^ already available tKipugh'i^ort

Prime gr^rrixipicnis musi'submil.FFAT^^^ in-which-
the;aw^rd;ora>v^d;a

Thc^nlraclor identified m Section 1J oJ"the General Provisipris agre« lo;cornply-\yith the prpyisiohs of
' The F(^^! Funding.AccduntabilityJand'Ti^spaAhcy AcI^. Public.LawtXb^^r^^^ 1-aw •110-
252;, and .2 ;.GFR''Part' 1.70 {Rcportiifg:Siihci)vard\(md Execian'^ and^ftirtlicr
,a^^t^r';ld iWye!,ihe:Gpnlractb^^^^ lepresentatiye- is'identifi.cd-.jm;^<^^^^ jv.fl and l;I2 pf dibiCericral."
'Pawisipns.cxcculc thc.followingGertification;

The below named Contractor agrccs'to providc needed information as oytlincd above to the NH Office
of STalcgic;:inUiatiy^ and'.to.ebmply with ail applicable,proylsidns.of the.F'c^^
Accodntobiiity.'and Tr^spj^

;• Tohn A. Manriing;Ghicf Exccuiivc Officer'

(Go»i^tor-'/RcpAScnlaiivc Signature) (Authorized GontiTJCtor^s Representative Naine:& Title)

SdumwcsicnfGbmtn'uhiiy.'Scrviccsvlric ,. / -L...
^  ̂ U j I? f2-o

(.Cohtractof Name) .(Date)

l'37.Fjchibit J; .Gontractor-lniiials: ,, ■ ...

Gram: IXAANirnSS {>.11^
GFDA:93.044' ' ~ Huge 1 ofZ



NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC.INITIATIVES

:STANDARP EXHI^^^

forma

\

As thc Goritractor idcntiricS in Scctibri^^J J of.theCenera^ Provisions,:Lcerti(yfthatAlic^
below, li;;!^ questions are:tnjeahd accurate.

I .'Tbi^DyNS nunibcr^f^^^ 081 251 381

>2; In ybur,bMS.'"*^^i'Pt Pri?^"'^Atipirs prfcai^in .yicaf;idid;yourbusincs^^^
rccciyc'(i ) ,8P:(wcCTt ormore gross rcycnucjn U.Sl fcderaljcphtrac^^^ subcontract,,|c«ns^^
ygi^ts,'sub:|^^tSj ajid(6r'cobRcr«iye"^ (2) $25,00.0;000.drrnpreih gross'rcvchucs'
from U.S. r^eral;ContraclS;.subcontracts,'^loaiis, grants, Subgrimls, arid/or.coopcmivc agrbcmcriis?;

X. . NO YES

If the aqsw'cr to #2 above b NO, rtop'here.

If the answer to;#2 ai^^ plea^ ariwer, the;f6Ild>y

Act

my YES

If the answer to #3.above is'\^Sj stopiKerc.

If thc ah^:cr.tprtt3 pletbe ahiro'cr the foH

4; i^tcmaincs ajtd cpmpcnsationpf thc five most highiy.compensated'ofificers in your business or^
prgani'^tion;are'as-fo lows:

'Name:

.•Name:..

"Name:

-Name:

Amouril:

Amourit:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

r37l-ixlilbil J '

Gnml: I8AAST4T3SS
CKI)A:9l64^

C)rminK:tbr Initial.^:

• Oatc:

Page-2 or-2



state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that SOUTHWESTERN

COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New

Hampshire on May 19, 1965. I further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been

received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 65514

Certificate Number: 0004894084

•x%
%

tim

5^

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 16th day of April A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



: (Gy rpo ra ict Au th'o ri ty)

ly-kievin'AVattcrson .^AQilTicer/S^retary'dr 'SbuthwcslcfnCoitim^ .
(I^n^) (^on>Qm,i,on.nmne

v^NeieeThflfter.the'"'G6rfwratlQ rcbrpOrati6n;-hCTCby cC^
(Sotc).

books;-'(4);that thb'Board oPbi'rcctore of ihc^CoTwration-hiivc authorized; on; Fcb'8. 2016".. such^aulhority

to; tfcjipi force'lind.c(TccV;uhti I :ScptCThber-30. .2022;
•^GpntnwYcr^^

JdHn-AvMahhing CCQ
(S'nTPC);

(Hsxi^y '(PqsiUwn)?

f5V:T^c'mccling:'6f:ihe'Boartf^^^^^ Ncw-^iinnipft^ ^
^  " j,," ' . Y "' ' ',!'"YSYa1bbVuV(»rporau6 „

Jaw/'apd'.tKeibyrlaw^dfthe:dorfwrationi;and;{6):said{autivoriEiti
undj'^inrinue^inffjiajl;;^^^^

jN'WI^KSS"Wl^BRBbFt'''h'flvcEhcrcunib';Sct^n^Jhj^^
v.*

JjQ Ylay'Or/Nbvciribcr? ^^20:20
{/I ■

.  (JyTf,

'btficcV/Sccrctary;
State op . iNOw^HjimpyHin::
GSuNTYYOF :(^hirc

theOh-thisYIO.' dav'dll :1^6vember . ..>20-20- . bcForc me.-iMari^-d^Treemnn";
ijnbori>igned,Qltict^>pdrsbnaiiv^^^ ;:Ke>?in'Waitch;dh'- .Whofacknoiyicd
io'SeiliaWfi'bCT^^^^ - -.m ^Sduthwestem'Gbm^^^ . ^raipogMJ^t^
and tl^i stic^ic aiisuch:' ••G^fficcf;. _;',bcing'auihori2<^'io do.-so,^'cx6cutcd/ihc.f^^
instrumcntTor-ilhcpurposdsUhcircm'coritaihc'd.

I  Ayj/^^SjWH E R^Ep^E<^'l;iKcrcunt^

• OCPtRES



/XCORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DO/YYYY)

6/24/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. ;

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an, ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

Clarlt - Mortenson Insurance
P.O. Box 606
Keene NH 03431

CDnTaCT
NAMF;

F.,.- 603-352-2121 iwc. wni: 603-357-8491

ADDRESS; csr24admin@clark-mortenson.eom

INSURER(S} AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC •

INSURER A PhitadelDhia insurance Company

INSURED SOUTHWESTERNCOM
Southwestern Community Services Inc
PC Box 603

Keene NH 03431

INSURER B Maine Employer Mutual Insurance Co.

INSURER C

INSURER D

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 342489272 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
TYPE OF INSURANCE

AOOL

JUSH

SUBR
POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
(MMCD/YYYYI

POLICY EXP
(MM/DD/YYYYI LIMITS

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

PHPK2U7853 EACH OCCURRENCE

OAMACE TO RENTED
PREMISES (Ea occufrw>cal

MEO EXP (Any ona p«f»oo)

PERSONAL & AOV INJURY

GENT AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY Q JECT n LOC
OTHER:

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • COMPlOP AGG

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
fEa accktenO

S 1,000.000

$ 100.000

(S.OOO

$ 1,000.000

{ 2.000.000

S 2.000.000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY PHPK2147851 8/30^2020

ANY AUTO

ALL OWNED
AUTOS

HIRED AUTOS

BODILY INJURY (Par panon)

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED

AUTOS

BODILY INJURY (Par acddant)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per acditenU

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

OED

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

PHUB727327 600n020 EACH OCCURRENCE $ 2.000.000

AGGREGATE $ 2.000,000

RETENTIONS iQQoo

PER
STATUTE

I OTH-
I ER

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICERAIEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In NH)
If yas. descrlba urtdar
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

Y/N

0
E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $500,000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE S 500,000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT $500,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS f LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORD 101. Additional Ramarka Schadula. may ba aRachad II mora apaca Is raquirad)

Workers Compensation laws apply for the state of: NH
Ail Officers are induded

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

NH Office of Strategic Initiatives
107 Pleasant Street
Concord NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2014/01)

© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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To the Board of Directors of certified public account/Usts

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. woijeroro • north convay
Keene, New Hampshire

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Southwestern
Community Services, Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation) and related companies,
which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as of May 31, 2019 and 2018,
and the related consolidated statements of cash flows, functional expenses, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements for the years then ended, and the related consolidated
statement of activities for the year ended May 31, 2019.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Resoonsibilitv

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based
on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted In the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers intemal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's intemal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in ail
material respects, the financial position of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and related
companies as of May 31, 2019 and 2018, and the changes in their net assets and their cash
flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted In
the United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and related companies'
2018 financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited
financial statements in our report dated September 17, 2018. In our opinion, the summarized
comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended May 31, 2018, is
consistent, in ail material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been
derived.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Adminlstative
Requirements, Cost Principies, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and the
Schedules of Functional Revenues and Expenses, are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such Information
is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepar^e the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information Is fairly stated, in all
material respects. In relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
November 5, 2019, on our consideration of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s intemai
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report Is to describe the scope of our testing of intemai control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on intemai control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards In considering Southwestern Community
Services, Inc.'s intemai control over financial reporting and compliance.

Novembers, 2019

Wolfeboro, New Hampshire



SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES .

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

MAY 31. 2019 AND 2018

ASSETS

2019 2016

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses
Notes receivable

Interest receivable

Total current assets

PROPERTY

Land and buildings
Vehicles and equipment
Furniture and fixtures

Total property

Less accumulated depreciation

Property, net

OTHER ASSETS

Investment in related parties
Due from related parties
Cash escrow and reserve funds

Security deposits
Other assets

Total other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Accnjed expenses
Accrued payroll arnl payroll taxes
Other current liabilities
Refundable advances

Interest payable
Current portion of long term debt

Total current liabilities

NONCURRENT UABILITIES

Long term debt, less current portion shown above

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

682,187

1,245,826

51,722

112,000
45.547

2.337.282

19,188.791
554,976
220.291

19.964,058

7.938.217

12.025.841

198,728

59,102

849,334
62,996

384

1,170,544

$  15,533,667

391,613
119,620
233,900
138,740

180,994

49,547
227,221

1,341,635

9.086.445

10.428.080

4,922,671
182,916

5,105,587

1,086,895

1,059,922

35,019
112,000
45.547

2.339.383

14,438,178
549,305
39-617

15,027,100

4.880.952

10.146.148

88,706

188,523
517,853
51,996

m

847.462

$  13,332,993

124,085

206,178

250,692
135,573
193,931

216,438

1,126,897

8.273,983

9,400,880

3,787.422
144,691

3.932,113

$  15,533,667 $ 13.332.993

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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SQUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVtCES. IKC.. AND RELATED nOMPANIFS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2019
WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions

2019

Total

2018

Total

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Government contracts

Program service fees
Rental Income

Developer fee income
Support
Sponsorship

Interest Income

Fo^iveness of debt
Miscellaneous

In-kind contributions

$ 10,672,702 $
2,485,405

995,380

326,558

70,893

7,153

388,649
120,697

241.499

125,833

$ 10,672,702
2.485,405

995,380

452,391

70,893

7.153

388,849
120,697

241.499

$ 11,055,093
1,868,188
801,642

50,000
509,229

105,286

8,959

75,971
100.772
161,852

Total revenues and other su(^rt 15,309,136 125,833 15,434,969 14,736,992

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM

RESTRICTIONS 87.608 (87.608)

Total revenues, other support and
net assets released from restrictions 15.390.744 38.225 15.434.969 14.736.992

EXPENSES

Program services
Home energy programs

Education and nutrition

Homeless programs
Housing services
Economic development services
Other programs

5,238,483

2,659,830

1,994,872

2,319,865

721,370
894,986

•

, 5,238,483

2,659,830

1,994,872

2,319,865

721,370
894.986

4,847,201

2,530,152

2,172,388
2,048,214
728,119
945.391

Total program serves 13,829,406 - 13,829,406 13,271,465

Supporting activities
Management and general 1,880,406 1,880,406 1.749.700

Total expenses 15.709,812 15,709:812 15.021.165

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS BEFORE

LOSS ON SALE OF PROPERTY (313,068) 38,225 (274,843) (284,173)

LOSS ON SALE OF PROPERTY (6,481) - (6,481) (4,583)

GAIN (LOSS) ON INVESTMENT IN UMITED PARTNERSHIPS 18,116 . 18,116 (188)

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (301,433) 38,225 (263,208) (288.944)

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 3,787,422 144,691 3,932,113 3,397,772

NET ASSETS TRANSFERRED FROM

LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 1.436,682 1,436,682 823.285

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $ 4,922,671 $ 182,916 $ 5.105,587 S  3.932.113

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2019 AND 2018

2019 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change In net assets $  (263.208) $  (288,944)
Adjustments to reconcile changes In net assets to
net cash from operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 560,115 467,929

Loss on sale of property 6,481 4,583

(Gain) loss on investment In limited partnerships (18,116) 188

Forgiveness of debt (388,849) (75,971)
(Increase) decrease in assets:

Accounts receivable (185,904) 265,199

Prepaid expenses 5,509 (3,439)
Interest receivable - (4,480)
Due from related parties 44,240 66,149

Security deposits 5,151 (2,623)
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:

Accounts payable 145,829 (53,220).
Accrued e^gsenses (106,905) (38,863)
Accrued payrell and payroll taxes (16,792) 9,657

Other curireht liabilities 3,167 (13,125)
Refundable advances (12,937) (44,414)
Interest payable 49,547

-

NET CASH (USED IN) PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES (152,672) 288,626

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

(Increase) decrease In escrow funds (33,568) 5,846

Proceeds from sale of property 215,000 -

Purchase of property. (139,717) (142,791)

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES 41,715 (136,945)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from long term debt 40,048 76,143

Repayment of long term debt (160,029) (112,612)

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTTVmES (119,981) (36,469)

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (230,938) 115,212

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,086,895 947,175

CASH TRANSFERRED FROM UMITED PARTNERSHIP 26,230 24,508

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $  882.187 $  1,086,895

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVtCES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

CONSOUDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2019 AND 2018

2019 2018

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash paid during the year for interest

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF NONCASH INVESTING

AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Transfer of assets from newly consolidated LP:
Prepaid expenses .

Land and buildings
Furniture and fixtures

Cash escrow and reserve funds

Security deposits

Total transfer of assets from newly consolidated LP

Transfer of liabilities from newly consolidated LP:
Accounts payable
Accnjed expenses
Due to related parties
Long term debt

Total transfer of ilabiiities from newly consolidated LP

Total partners' capital from newly consolidated LP

Partriers' capital previously recorded as Investment In related parties

Total transfer of partners' capital from newly consolidated LP

$  203,406 $ 142.467

$  (22,212)

(2.373,335)
(168,237)
(297,913)
(16,151)

(12,328)
(894,504)
(96.338)

(164,110)
(11.467)

$ (2,877.848) $ (1,178,747)

$$  121,699 10,810
20,347

85,181
1,332,075

$  1,559,302

$  1,344,776

91,906

$  1.436,682

11,199

304,073

$ 326,082

$ 877,173

(53.888)

s 823,285

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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SQUTHWESTgRM COMMUWrTY SgRVICgS INC. AND RELATgP COMPAMIgS

CONSOUDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31 ?01B

Education Economic Management

' Home Energy and Homeless Housing Development Other Total end 2010

Proorsms Nutrition Proorams Services Servleee Pfwrpfre Prooram General Total

Payntl S  432.968 S  1.224.088 $  377305 S  775.425 S  414.7X 6  432326 $ 3.658.5X S  753.0X $ 4.411398
Psyrol Isxss 33.521 07.910 29,527 S9.7X 33.519 34.195 2X.4ig 58304 346.723
EmpioyM benefits 106.054 415390 142,654 289.985 97.771 1X394 1332.648 111.111 1.343.7M
Retlwneni 29.200 70.400 18,908 ei.ox 27.831 16.161 224.482 71.547 296.009
A(^rertj$lflg 500 1312 4.013 818 0,487 10,7X • 16.7M
Bankchsiues . . 4.444 . 1 4.445 7.329 11.774

Bed debt eiqMRse 10 . X 1W - IX

Computer cost 24.540 4,759 3.027 14326 7M 48.002 118346 164.846
Contractual 629.045 32.030 2X384 X.606 2.719 118.585 1.050.059 X.743 1.0X.702
Depreciation 26.300 108301 281350 14307 432.748 147367 580.115
Duee^regltlfallcn 5377 . 488 868 1312 7,945 11370 10324

DupHcafing 8.852 . . - - 8,852 4.155 13.W7

Insurance 6.714 14.798 23390 M,e72 14.1X 7.164 127,068 X,892 1X.9W
Interest 7.775 8.022 21.956 . 1.610 X.363 164,045 203.408
Meeting and conference 8.673 813 2367 8.104 565 22.569 43391 24.957 68.248
MisceilarMous expertse 181 1.895 637 34.793 3.651 2.931 43.888 19378 63.1M
Miscellaneous taxes .

. 34300 .
. 34.900 389 X389

Equipmeni purchases 1.292 15374 . 7387 23,853 1.1X 25333

Office e:qMnse 24.820 8,490 6.695 11.475 6.458 X7 58,754 11.658 70.410

Postage 97 268 IX 53 214 . 770 243X 25.008

Professional lees 4.300 . 1301 X.09S . 41.696 X.668 132.664

Staff development arxJ training 2.128 1,580 1.678 72 1.004 - 21377 29339 10.590 39.829

Subscriptions . - 655 354 - 1,009 399 1.408

Telephorte 2.087 2356 18.479 17.817 2338 1.589 44.664 52308 X372
Travel 7.951 16356 15.412 5.183 20.531 608 74.941 4.855 79.7X
Vefede 2.300 5325 1.088 37.795 44.428 8.568 09.402 13.436 112.838

Rent . 24.800 . 150 . . 24,950 - 24.9X
Space costs 194.048 X2.X1 512.392 1.000 378 1,041,065 106,868 1.147.W1
Direct cfient asslstarKe 3.047.152 214.436 668384 10,674 23.819 21,049 4.865314 - 4.885314
In-Mnd expertses 241.409 . . . . 241.499 - 241 4X

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES BEFORE

MANAGEMENT AND GENERAL ALLOCATION 5.238.483 2.659.830 1304372 2319.865 721370 894.986 13.829.406 1.8X.406 15.7X312

Allocation of management and general expenses 712.284 361.661 271346 315.436 98.086 121.693 1.eX.406 ri.8X.406l .

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES S 5.050.767 S 3,021.491 S 2366.118 S 2.635.X1 S  819.458 S  1316.879 S 15,709.812 s S 15.7X312

Sm Notn to ContolldatMl Flncncial StMamcnts
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SQUTOWgSTFBN COMMUMITY SCRVICgS. INC

CONSOUOATEO SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 201S

EducaUen Eeonocrdc lilant0«m*nt

Home Energy and Homeless Housing Development Other Total and

Proorams Nutrition Proorams Services Services Proorams Prooram and General

Payrel S  368.452 5  1208.631 5  435438 S  771.028 $  405.186 S  439.358 S 3.658,166 $  774,466

Payroltaxss 31496 69.882 34.153 56.603 30.416 36.618 269.771 60.913

Employw baoafts 122.762 453204 148494 278.383 87.744 167.020 1275.517 54.560

RstlramanI 24.660 66.878 21.031 64244 19.260 17.448 216.821 73.148

Advedblno 142 1,667 4,160 2.114 16.172 24.491
-

Sank charges 15 120 3.034 -
3.969 9.076

Computer cost 6.165 4.300 14.144 14266 3400 45.427 82.052

Contractual 516.340 52.483 242.635 20.3« 2.718 109,718 646,536 14.921

Deprodatlon 26400 108261 167.840 • 18.131 320482 147.387

DueafragistrBtlon • 8,038 • 343 688 697 8.364 10.175

DupCcating 1484 8.148 - • - •
9.732 4.321

Inturanco 5,606 13481 23.653 52287 14.610 6248 116.068 38,380

Interaat 8.650 7,759 6,667 2.554 25,666 110.501

Moetino and conference 3.661 58 9.263 7,177 600 19.305 40494 35.624

Mlscdbneous eipenaa 606 971 2403 18.696 '  4.442 18,560 45.881 13.182

Mlscalianeous taxes . . . 20.381 - - 26.381 986

Equipmanl purchases 4.670 24.320 80 12448 • • 41.418 2.305

Office esQiense 34,413 12.613 8.440 14.506 12.042 4.076 86.090 20.402

Postaoe 132 274 182 31 348 50 1.017 22.918

Professional fees' 4.660' . 1,875 15,876 - 22.044 63.768

Staff devetopment and trtinlno 1.430 23,724 2.624 8287 5.675 28.044 69.784 2,643

SubscrlptJoris - 28 67
- -

115 1429

Telephone 2.066 15267 19.681 14469 2.435 3239 57407 50476

Travel 5435 20.013 20412 5.195 29.509 2.000 82464 3.509

Vahlde 2.140 2410 712 31426 45200 6201 91489 10,981

Rant 25201 • - - 25201 •

Space costs 148 140213 256.846 438.344 • 1.009 836.563 128.668

DIreci dent assistance 3,683,488 145220 823.636 14.447 50.531 23,843 4,741.445 •

In4dnd expenses . 181.852 . - -
- 161452 -

TOTAL FUNCTXINAL EXPENSES BEFORE
1.749.700GENERAL AND MANAGEMENT ALLOCATION 4447201 2430.152 2.172,388 2.048214 728.119 945291 13271.485

Allocation of manapemert and oeneral axpertses 836.051 333473 286.407 270.035 95.095 124.639 1.746.70O f1.746.7001

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 5 5.468.252 % 2.863.725 $  2.458.765 5 2418.246 t  624.114 S  1.070,030 S 15.021.165 S

2018

Total

4.432.B82
350.684

1^.107

288.669
24,491

13,046

107.476
901.457

487.629
16.536

14.053

154.446

142.407

76.316

56.063
27.367

43.723

106.492
23.635

106,410

72,727
1.444

113.663

85.873

102470
25201

965429
4.741.445
161,852

15.021.165

t 15.021,165

Sm NotM to ConaoOdatad Financial Stalamants
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SOUTHWESTERN CQIVIMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2019 AND 2018

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

General

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. (the Organization) is a New Hampshire
nonprofit corporation formed as an umbrella corporation that offers an array of
services to the elderly, disabled, and low-income households in the Cheshire and

Sullivan counties of New Hampshire. Various programs provide assistance in the
areas of education, child development, employment, energy and its conservation,
housing, and homeiessness prevention. Services are provided through
Southwestern Community Services, Inc., and its related corporations, SCS
Managernent Corporation, SCS Housing, Inc., SCS Development Corporation,
SCS Housing Development, Inc., and various limited partnerships, as described
below. The Organization is committed to providing respectful support service and
assisting individuals and families in achieving self-sufficiency by helping them
overcome the causes of poverty. The primary source of revenues Is derived from
governmental contracts.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Southwestern

Community Services, Inc. and the following entities as Southwestern Community
Services, Inc. has both an economic interest and control of the entities through a
majority voting interest in their governing board. All significant intercompany
items and transactions have been eliminated from the basic consolidated
financial statements.

■  SCS Management Corporation
■  SCS Housing, inc.
■  SCS Development Corporation
■  SCS Housing Development, Inc.
f  Drewsville Carriage House Associates, Limited Partnership (Drewsville)
■  Jaffrey Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Jaffrey) - Sold 2/1/19
■  Troy Senior Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Troy Senior)
■  Keene East Side Senior Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Keene

East Side)
■ Winchester Senior Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Winchester)

Consolidation began 8/16/17
■  Swanzey Township Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Swanzey)

Consolidation began 6/30/18
■  Snow Brook Meadow Village Housing Associates, Limited Partnership
(Snow Brook) Consolidation began 5/01/19

9



Basis of Accounting

The consolidated financial statements of Southwestem Community Services, Inc.
and related companies have been prepared utilizing the accrual basis of
accounting in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP), which require
the Organization to report information regarding its financial position and
activities according to the following net asset classifications. The classes of net
assets are determined by the presence or absence of donor-imposed
restrictions.

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to
donor-Imposed restrictions and rnay be expended for any purpose in
performing the primary objectives of the Organization. These net assets
may be used at the discretion of the Organization's Board of Directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations
imposed by donors and grantbrs. Some donor restrictions are temporary in
nature: those restrictions will be met by actions of the Organization or by
passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby
the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

As of May 31, 2019 and 2018, the Organization had net assets without donor
restrictions and with donor restrictions.

The financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative
information in total but not by net asset class. Such information does not include
sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles. Accordingly, such information should be read in
conjunction with the Organization's financial statements for the year ended May
31, 2018 from which the summarized infoimation was derived.

Refundable Advances

The Organization records grant and contract revenue as refundable advances until
it is expended for the purpose of the grant or contract, at which time it is
recognized as revenue.

In-Kind Support

The Organization records various types of in-kind support including professional
services and materials. Contributed professional services are recognized if the
service received, creates or enhances long-lived assets or requires specialized
skill, are provided by individuals possessing those skills, and would typically need
to be purchased if not provided by donation. Contributions of tangible assets are
recognized at fair value when received.

10



Estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Organization considers all liquid
investments purchased with original maturities of three months or less to be cash
equivalents.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect
from balances outstanding at year end. Balances that are still outstanding after
management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a
charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. The
allowance for uncollectible accounts was estimated to be zero at May 31, 2019
and 2018. The Organization has no policy for charging interest on overdue
accounts.

Notes Receivable

The Organlzatloh has two notes receivable from an unrelated third party. The
notes receivables are stated at the amount that is expected to be collected at
year end. Interest is accrued at a rate of 4% annually. The balance of the
notes receivable and related interest receivable was $112,000 and $45,547,
respectively, at May 31, 2019 and 2018.

Current Vulnerability Due to Certain Concentrations

The Organization is. operated in a heavily regulated environment. The
operations of the Organization are subject to the administrative directives, rules
and regulations of federal, state and local regulatory agencies. Such
administrative directives, rules and regulations are subject to change by an act
of Congress or Legislature. Such changes may occur with little notice or
inadequate funding to pay for the related cost, Including the additional,
administrative burden, to comply with a change. For the years ended May 31,
2019 and 2018, approximately 68% and 75%, respectively, of the
Organization's total revenue was received from government agencies. The
future nature of the organization Is dependent upon continued support from the
government.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Organization maintains its cash accounts in several financial institutions,
which at times may exceed federally Insured limits. The Organization has not
experienced any losses in such accounts and believes it is not exposed to any
significant risk with respect to these accounts.
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Property and Depreciation

Purchased property and equipment are stated at cost at the date of acquisition
or at fair value at the date of receipt in the case of donated property. The
Organization generally capitalizes and depreciates all assets with a cost greater
than $5,000 and an expected life greater than one year. Depreciation is
provided for using the straight-line method in amounts designed to amortize the
cost of the assets over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings and improvements 10-40 Years
Vehicles and equipment 5-10 Years
Furniture and fixtures 7 Years

The use of certain assets is specified under the terms of grants received from
agencies of the federal government. These grants also place liens on certain
assets and impose restrictions on the use of funds received from the disposition
of the property. Depreciation expense for the years ended May 31, 2019 and 2018
totaled $580,115 and $467,929, respectively.

Advertising

The Organization expenses advertising costs as incurred.

Revenue Recognition

Amounts received from conditional grants and contracts received for specific
purposes are generally recognized as income to the extent that related expenses
and conditions are incurred or met. Conditional grants received prior to the
conditions being met are reported as refundable advances. Contributions of cash
and other assets are reported as with donor restrictions if they are received with
donor imposed stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. However, if a
restriction is fulfilled in the same period in which the contribution is received, the
Organization reports the support as without donor restrictions.

Income Taxes

Southwbstem Community Services, Inc. and SCS Management Corporation
are exempt from Federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code and are not private foundations. As such, they are exempt from
income tax on their exempt function income.

SCS Housing, Inc., SCS Development Corporation and SCS Housing
Development, Inc. are taxed as corporations. SCS Housing Inc. has federal net
operating loss carryforwards totaling $i,012;604 and $915,425 at May 31, 2019
and 2018, respectively. These loss carryforwards may be offset against future
taxable income and, if not used, will begin to expire in 2027. SCS Development
Corporation has federal net operating loss carryforwards totaling $579 and $607 at
May 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. These loss carryforwards may be offset
against future taxable Income and, if not used, will begin to expire in 2022.
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The tax effects of the carryforwards as related to deferred tax assets Is as
follows as of May 31, 2019 and 2018:

2019 2018

Tax benefit from loss carryfoAvards $212,768 $137,408
Valuation allowance (212.768) (137.408)

Deferred tax asset $ - $ -

Drewsville, Jaffrey, Troy Senior, Winchester, Keene East Side, Swanzey, and
Snow Brook are taxed as partnerships. Federal Income taxes are not payable by,
or provided for these entities. Earnings and losses are included in the partners'
federal income tax returns based on their share of partnership earnings.
Partnerships are required to file income tax returns with the State of New
Hampshire and pay an income tax at the state's statutory rate.

Accounting Standard Codification No. 740, "Accounting for Income Taxes,"
established the minimum threshold for recognizing, and a system for
measuring, the benefits of tax return positions in financial statements.
Management has analyzed the Organization's tax position taken on its income
tax returns for all open years (tax years ending May 31, 2017 - 2019), and has
concluded that no additional provision for income taxes is necessary in the
Organization's financial statements.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

FASB ASC Topic No. 820-10, Financial Instruments, provides a definition of fair
value which focuses on an exit price rather than an entry price, establishes a
framework in generally accepted accounting principles for measuring fair value
which emphasizes that fair value is a market-based measurement, not an
entity-specific measurement, and requires expanded disclosures about fair
value measurements. In accordance with ASC 820-10, the Organization may
use valuation techniques consistent with market, income and cost approaches
to measure fair value. As a basis for considering market participant
assumptions in fair value measurements. Topic 820-10 establishes a fair value
hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair values. The
hierarchy gives the highest priority to Level 1 measurements and the lowest
priority to Level 3 measurements. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy
under ASC Topic 820-10 are described as follows:

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices available in
active markets for identical investments as of the reporting date.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are other than quoted market
prices in active markets, which are either directly or indirectly observable as
of the reporting date, and fair value can be determined through the use of
models or other valuation methodologies.
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Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable inputs in
situations vyhere there is little or no market activity for the asset or liability
and the reporting entity makes estimates and assumptions related to the
pricing of the asset or liability including assumptions regarding risk.

The carrying amount of cash, accounts receivables, prepaid expenses, accounts
payable, accrued expenses, and refundable,advances approximates fair value
because of the short maturity of those instruments.

New Accounting Pronouncement ^

On August 18, 2016, FASB issued ASU 2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic
958) Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities. The update
addresses the complexity and understandability of net asset classification,
deficiencies in information about liquidity and availability of resources, and the
lack of consistency in the type of information provided about expenses and
investment retum. The Organization has adjusted the presentation of these
statements accordingly. The ASU has been applied retrospectively to all periods
presented.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of pfovidiiig the various programs and other activities have been
sumniarized on a functional basis. Natural expenses are defined by their nature,
such as salaries, rent, supplies, etc. Functional expenses are classified by, the
type of activity for which expenses are incurred, such as management and
general and direct program costs. Expenses are allocated by function using a
reasonable and consistent approach that is primarily based on function and use.
The costs of providing certain program and supporting services have been
directly charged.

The Organization submits an indirect cost rate proposal for the paid leave, fringe
benefits and other indirect costs to the U.S. Department of Health and Human
services. The Indirect cost rate is 11.96% effective from June 1, 2017 through
May 31,2020.

NOTE 2 BANK LINE OF CREDIT

The Organization has a $250,000 revolving line of credit agreement with a bank.
Interest is due monthly and is stated at the Wall Street Joumal Prime Rate. The
line is secured by all the Organization's assets. As of May 31, 2019 and 2018,
the interest rate was 5.50% and 4.75%, respectively. There was no outstanding
balance at May 31, 2019 and 2018.

14



NOTE 3 LONG TERM DEBT

The long term debt at May 31, 2019 and 2018 consisted of the following:

2019 2018

1% mortgage payable to New Hampshire Housing
in monthly installments for principal and interest of
$891 through August 2032. The note is secured
by real estate of the Organization (NHHFA, 96
Main Street). $ 145.647 $ 154,832

Non-interest bearing mortgage payable to
Community Development Finance Authority, In
quarterly principal payments based on operating
income formula applied to affordable housing
portion of the specified real estate. The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization (CDFA,
96 Main Street). 31,589 32,147

5.5% note payable to a bank in hionthiy
instaliments for principal and interest of $978
through March 2021. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization (People's United Bank,
Ashuelot). 20,672 31,143

Non-interest bearing mortgage payable to' New
Hampshire Housing. Payment is deferred for 30
years, through September 2031, or until project is
sold or refinanced. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization (NHHFA, 17 Peari). 244,505 244,505

Non-interest bearing mortgage payable to New
Hampshire Housing. Payment is deferred for 30
years, through Juiy 2032, unless there is surplus
cash from which to make a payrhent, or until
project is sold or refinanced. The note is secured
by real estate of the Organization (NHHFA, 41-43
Central). 376,363 376,363

4.25% mortgage payable to a bank in monthly
installments for principal and interest of $1,875
through December 2016, with a balloon payment
that was due January 2017. The note was
amended during the year ended May 31, 2019 and
is now due December 2026. Under the

amendment, interest rate is 4.94% and monthly
installments for principal and interest are $1,957
The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (People's United Bank, Miiestones). 146,515 162,223 :
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2019 2018

4.375% note payable to Rural Housing Service in
monthly installments for principal and interest of
$11,050 through May 2049. The note is secured .
by real estate of the Organization (TD Bank,
Keene Office). 2,212,288 2,247,266

Non-interest bearing note payable to Cheshire
County in New Hampshire. Payment is not
necessary unless Organization defaults on
contract. The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (CDBG, Keene Office). 460.000 460,000

4% note payable to a development company, in
annual interest installments only through March
2015 at which time a final balloon payment of the
entire principal balance was due. The remaining
balance is still outstanding at May 31, 2019 and is
classified as current. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization (MEDC, Keene
Office/Community Way). 63,000 63,000

4% note payable to a development company, in
annual interest Installments only through March
2015 at which time a final balloon payment of the
entire principal balance was due. The remaining
balance is still outstanding at May 31, 2019 and is
classified as current. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization (MEDC, Keene
Office/Community Way). 45,000 45,000

Note payable to a bank in monthly installments for
principal and interest of $2,463 including interest
through May 2039. Interest is adjusted every five
years based on remaining principal balance and
"Classic Advantage Rate" provided by Federal
Home Loan Bank of Boston which resulted in an

Interest rate of 4.67% and 4.07% at May 31, 2019
and 2018, respectively. The note is secured by
real estate of the Organization (TD Bank, Keene
Office/Community Way). 401,891 414,567

5.19% note payable to a bank In monthly
installments for principal and interest of $889
through May 2021. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization (TD Bank, 45 Central
Street). 94,733 100.254
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2019 2018

Non-interest bearing note payable to the United
States Department of Housing and Urban
Development. No payment is due and beginning in
January 2015 10% of the note is forgiven each
year providing the property is used for low income
housing through January 2025. The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization (HUD,
Ashuelot). 125,000 150.000

Non-interest bearing note payable to the United
States Department of Housing and Urban
Development. No payment is due and beginning in
January 2015 10% of the note is forgiven each
year providing the property is-used for low income
housing through January 2025. The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization (HUD,
112 Charlestown Road). 75,000 90,000

Non-interest bearing note payable to New
Hampshire Housing in annual payments In the
amount of 50% of annual surplus cash through
July 2042 at which time the remaining balance is
due. The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (NHHFA, Second Chance). 794,189 794,189

Non-interest bearing note payable to a county in
New Hampshire. No payment is due and 5% of
the balance is forgiven each year through 2032
when the remaining balance becomes due. The
note is secured by real estate of the Organization
(ODBC, Second Chance). 344,536 363,677

6.99% note payable to a finance company in
monthly installments for principal and interest of
$652 through June 2019. The note is secured by a
vehicle (TCF, Econoline Van). 1,293 8,741

5.54% note payable to a finance company in
monthly installments for principal and interest of
$543 through August 2022. The note is secured by
a vehicle (Ally, Econoline Van). 19,287 ' 24,564
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2019 2018
Jaffrey - 30-year deferred note payable to the
Town of Jaffrey, New Hampshire. Payment of
prihcipal and accrued interest at 1 % were deferred
until the note matures in June 2027. The note was

secured by land and buildings. The balance
included cumulative accrued interest of $53,651
(CDBG). Jaffrey was sold during the year ended
May 31. 2019 and the balance was forgiven. - 303,651

Jaffrey - 6% note payable to a bank in monthly
installments for principal and Interest of $485
through August 2027. The note was secured by
land and buildings (TD Bank). Jaffrey was sold
during the year ended May 31, 2019 and this note
was paid in full. - 41,099

Troy Senior - Non-interest bearing note payable to
a county in New Hampshire. Payments are
deferred until the note matures in June 2029. The

note is secured by real estate of the Organization
(CDBG). 640.000 640,000

Troy Senior - Non-interest bearing note payable to
New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority to fund
energy efficiency improvements through the
Authority's Greener Homes Program. Payment is
deferred for 30 years, through August 2042. The
note is secured by real estate of the Organization
(NHHFA). 140,210 140,210

Keene East Side - Non-interest bearing note
payable to a county in New Hampshire. Payments
are deferred until the note matures in December

2028. The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (CDBG). 900,000 900,000

Keene East Side - Non-interest bearing note
payable to New Hampshire Community
Development Finance Authority (CDFA) to fund
energy upgrades and capital improvements.
Beginning in 2016, 10% of the note is forgiven
each year based on the rolling balance. The
mortgage may be released after ten years in
January 2026. The note is secured by real estate
of the Organization (CDFA). 185,899 178,172
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2019 2018

Keene East Side - Non-interest bearing note
payable to New Hampshire Housing to fund
energy efficiency improvements through the
Authority's Greener Homes Program. Payment is
deferred for 30 years, through August 2042. The
note is secured by real estate of the Organization
(NHHFA). 228,934 228,934

Swanzey - Non-recourse, 4.90% simple interest
mortgage note payable to the New Hampshire
Housing (HOME), due September, 2033, principal
and interest payable at the sole discretion of the
lender from the excess cash of the borrower

determined by formula, secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
income housing use restrictions for the 30 year
term of the mortgage. 282,720

Swanzey - Non-recourse mortgage note payable
to New Hampshire Housing (AHF), due
September 2043, payable in monthly installments
of $1,698, including interest at 2.35% secured by
the Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
income housing use restrictions for the 40 year
term of the mortgage. 377,110

Snow Brook - Non-recourse, mortgage note
payable to New Hampshire Housing, due July
2057, payable in monthly installments of $2,002
including interest at 4.35% secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
income housing use restrictions for the 30 year
term of the mortgage. 446,561

Snow Brook - Non-recourse, zero interest
mortgage note payable to New Hampshire
Housing (AHF), due June 2034, principal and
interest payable at the sole discretion of the lender
from the excess cash of the borrower determined

by formula, secured by the Partnership's land and
buildings, subject to low income housing use
restrictions for the 30 year term of the mortgage. 237,173
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2019 2018

Winchester - Non-recourse mortgage note payable
to New Hampshire Housing (AHF), due May 2032,
payable in monthly installments of $370, including
interest at 2.00%, secured by the Partnership's
land and buildings, subject to low income housing
use restrictions for the 30 year term of the
mortgage note (NHHFA). 50,436 53,826

Winchester - Non-recourse, zero interest bearing
mortgage note payable to New Hampshire
Housing (FAF), due May 2032, payable at the sole
discretion of the lender from the excess cash of

the borrower determined by formula, secured by
the Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
income housing use restrictions for the 30-year
term of the mortgage note (NHHFA). 92,058 92,058

Winchester - Non-recourse, zero interest bearing,
direct subsidy AHP loan secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low-
income housing restrictions under the terms of the
AHP agreement. In the event of a default under
the aforementioned agreement, the loan is due
upon demand with interest accrued at a rate of
11.67% for the period the funds were outstanding
(Federal Home Loan Bank). 150.000 150.000

Total long-term debt before unamortlzed deferred
financing costs

Unamortlzed deferred financing costs

Less current portion due within one year

9,332,609

(18.943)

8,490,421

9,313,666 8,490,421
227.221 216.438

Year Ending
May 31

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

Thereafter

Total $ 9.332.609

20

$ 9.086.445 $8,273,983

1, 2019 is as follows:

Amount

$  227,221
121,051

115,864

115,596

118,605
8.634.272



NOTE 4 OPERATING LEASES

The Organization leases facilities, equipment and vehicles under non-
cancelable lease agreements at various financial institutions. Lease periods
range from month to month to 2024. Monthly lease payments range from $60 to
$3,625. Lease expense for the years ended May 31. 2019 and 2018 totaled
$144,880 and $136,963 respectively.

Future minimum payments as of May 31, 2019 on the above leases are as
follows:

Year Ending
May 31

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

Thereafter

Amount

$  78,745
21,677

18,318
1,050

720

120

Total $  120.630

NOTE 5 ACCRUED COIVIPENSATED BALANCES

At May. 31, 2019 and 2018, the Organization accrued a liability for future annual
leave time that its employees had earned and vested in the amount of $131,864
and $130,140, respectively.

NOTE 6 CONTINGENCIES

Southwestem Community Services, Inc. is the 100% owner of SOS Housing,
Inc. and SOS Housing Development, Inc. SOS Housing, Inc. and SOS Housing
Development, Inc. are the general partners often limited partnerships formed to
develop low-income housing projects through the use of Low Income Housing
Tax Credits. Southwestem Community Services, Inc., SCS Housing, Inc. and
SCS Housing Development, Inc. have guaranteed repayment of liabilities of
various partnerships totaling approximately $14,151,000 and $15,553,000 at
May 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Partnership real estate with a cost basis of approximately $35,831,000 and
$41,158,000 at May 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively, provides collateral on
these loans.
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The Organization receives funds under various state grants and from Federal
sources. Under the terms of these agreements, the Organization is required to
use the funds within a certain period and for purposes specified by the
governing laws and regulations. If costs were found not to have been incurred
in compliance with the laws and regulations, the Organization might be required
to repay the funds.

No provisions have been made for this contingency because specific amounts,
if any, have not been determined or assessed by government audits as of May
31. 2019 and 2018.

NOTE 7 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the years ended May 31. 2019 and 2018. SCS Housing. Inc. managed
ten limited partnerships. Management fees charged by SCS Housing, Inc. totaled
$313,466 and $322,973, for the years ended May 31, 2019 and 2018,
respectively. Additionally, SCS Housing, Inc., has advanced the limited
partnerships funds for cash flow purposes over several years.

The Organization has also advanced funds to a related entity for Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) sponsorship purposes.

The total amounts due and expected to be collected from the limited partnerships
and related entities totaled $59,102 and $188,523, respectively, at May 31. 2019
and 2018.

NOTE 8 EQUITY INVESTMENT

Southwestern Community Services. Inc. and related companies use the equity
method to account for their financial interests in the following companies:

Cityside Housing Associates. LP
Marlborough Homes, LP
Payson Village Senior Housing Associates. LP
Railroad Square Senior Housing Associates. LP
Wanwick Meadows Housing Associates. LP
Woodcrest Drive Housing Associates. LP
Westmill Senior Housing, LP
Swanzey Township Housing Associates, LP
Snow Brook Meadow Village Housing

Associates, LP
Keene Highland Housing Associates, LP
Pilot Health, LLC

2019 2018

$  (9,500) $  (9,492)
(11) 8

(12,503) (12.491)
(1.897) (1.715)

(21) (17)
222,842 222.846

78 90
- (31.190)

- (60,716)
(260) (243)

- (18.374)

$  198.728 $  88.706
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SCS Housing Development, Inc. Is a 0.01% partner of CItyslde Housing
Associates, LP, Marlborough Homes, LP, Payson Village Senior Housing
Associates, LP, Warwick Meadows Housing Associates, LP, and Woodcrest
Drive Housing Associates, LP, a 0.10% partner of Railroad Square Senior
Housing Associates, LP, and a 1% partner In Westmill Senior Housing, LP
during the years ended May 31, 2019 and 2018.

SCS Housing, Inc. Is a 0.01% partner of Winchester Senior Housing
Associates, LP, Swanzey Township Housing Associates, LP, Snow Brook
Meadow Village Housing Associates, LP, and Keene Highland Housing
Associates, LP during the years ended May 31, 2019 and 2018.

The remaining 99.99% ownership Interest In Swanzey Township Housing
Associates, LP and Snow Brook Meadow Village Housing Associates, LP were
acquired by Southwestern Community Services, Inc. during the year ending
May 31, 2019 (see Note 12), and therefore the limited partnership Is Included in
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended May 31, 2019. The
remaining 99.99% ownership interest In Winchester Senior Housing Associates,
LP was acquired by Southwestern Community Service, Inc. during the year
ended May 31, 2018 (see Note 12), and therefore the limited partnership Is
Included in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended May 31,
2019 and 2018.

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. was a 14.3% member of Pilot Health,
LLC during the year ended May 31, 2018. Pilot Health was terminated during
the year ended May 31, 2019.

Summarized financial Information for entitles accounted for under the equity
method, asof May 31, 2019 and 2018, consists of the following:

2019 2018

Total assets $ 5.745 $ 32.782

Total liabilities 2,454 47,461

Capital/Member's equity 3.291 (14.679)

Income $ 426 $ 84,713

Expenses 661 81.478

Net Income (loss) £ (235)

23



NOTE 9 RETIREMENT PLAN

The Organization maintains a tax sheltered annuity plan under the provisions of
Section 403(b) of the intema! Revenue Code. All employees who have had at
least 30 days of service to the Organization are eligible to contribute to the plan.
The Organization begins matching contributions after the employee has
reached one year of service. Employer contributions are at the Organization's
discretion and totaled $296,009 and $289,969 for the years ended May 31,
2019 and'2018, respectively.

NOTE 10 RESTRICTIONS ON NET ASSETS

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following purposes:

2019 2018

NNECAC - Annual Conference Fund

Stand Down

GAPSAA^arm Fund

Transport
HS Parents Association

EHS

Total net assets with donor restrictions

5,973 $ 21,327
- 4,963

91,908 118,401
47,260 -

6,575 .

31.200 _

182.916 $ 144.691

NOTE 11 FORGIVENESS OF DEBT

During the year ended May 31, 2019, the Organization realized forgiveness of
,  debt income in connection with notes payable to Community Development
Block Grant, HUD and Community Development Finance Authority.
Forgiveness of debt income totaled $388,849 for the year ended May 31, 2019.

During the year ended May 31, 2018, the Organization realized forgiveness of
.  debt income in connection with notes payable to the County of Cheshire, HUD

and New Hampshire Housing. Forgiveness of debt income totaled $75,971 for
the year ended May 31, 2018.

24



NOTE 12 TRANSFER OF PARTNERSHIP INTEREST

During the years ended May 31. 2019 and 2018, Southwestern Community
Services, Inc. acquired a partnership interest In three low-income housing limited
partnerships: Winchester, Swanzey and Snow Brook. The amount paid for the
partnership interest in Winchester, Swanzey and Snow Brook was $1 each, and
at the time of acquisition, Southwestern Community Services, Inc. became the
general partner. The following is a summary of the assets and liabilities of the
partnership at the date of acquisition:

2018 2019

Winchester Swanzev Snow Brook

Date of Transfer 08/16/2017 06/30/2018 05/01/2019

Cash

Security deposits
Cash reserves

Property, net
Other assets

$  24,508
11,467

164,110

990,842

12,328

$ 12,856
7.330

119,061

1,330,231

6.436

$13,374
8,821

178,852

1,211,341

15,776

Total assets 1,203.255 1,475,914 1.428,164

Notes payable
Other Liabilities

304,073

22.009

666,902
87.108

665,173

140.119

Total liabilities 326.082 754,010 805,292

Partners' capital 877,173 721,904 622,872

Partners' capital previously recorded
as an Investment in related parties (53,8881 31,190 60,716

Partners' capital transferred S 823.285 $ 753.094 $ 683,588
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NOTE 13 AVAILABILITY AND LIQUIDITY

,  The following represents Southwestern Community Services' financial assets as
of May 31, 2019 and 2018:

2019 2018

Financial assets at year end:
Cash and cash equivalents $  882.187 $  1,086,895
Accounts receivable 1,245,826 1,095,486
Due from related party 59,102 188,523
Notes receivable 112,000 112,000
Interest receivable 45,547 45,547
Cash escrow and reserve funds 849.334 517.853

Total financial assets 3.193.996 3.046.304

Less amounts not available to be used

within one year:

Due from related party (59,102) (188,523)
Notes receivable (112,000) (112,000)
Interest receivable (45,547) (45,547)
Reserve funds (729.486) (444.980)

Total amounts not available within one year (946.135) (791.050)

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months ^ 2.247.861 $ 2.255.254

The Organization has a goal to maintain unrestricted cash on hand to meet 30
days of normal operating expenditures, which are, on average, approximately
$1,224,000 and $1,183,000 at May 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. The
Organization has a $250,000 line of credit available to meet cash flow needs.

NOTE 14 RECLASSIFICATION

Certain amounts and accounts from the prior year's financial statements were
reclassified to enhance comparability with the current year's financial statements.

NOTE 15 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of
financial position date, but before financial statements are available to be issued.
Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional
evidence about conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date,
including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing financial statements.
Nonrecognized subsequent events are events that , provide evidence about
conditions that did not exist at the statement of financial position date, but arose
after that date. Management has evaluated subsequent events through
November 5. 2019, the date the financial statements were available to be issued.
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMIIMfTY SggWCgS IMC AND RgLATPD CQMPAMIFS

CONSOUDATED SCHEDULE OF FUNCnONAL REVENUES AND EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENOED MAY 31, MM

Education Ecortontlc ManagetTMni

Horns Energy attd lorrMlsss Housing Osvelopmertt Other Total Mftd 2019

•foorarrta Nutrition Services Services Proorams Program Oenerai Total

REVENUES

Government oMrKts $ 4.946^7 $ 2,853.470 S 1,607.684 S 53,038 S  734366 S 148.424 S 10343.769 S 428.933 S 10.672.702
Program service fees 572.421 74,144 997,150 24,700 772,976 2,441,391 44,014 2.485.405
Rental Income . 84,704 909376 . 1,400 995,380 095360
Developer fee Income . . . . . . . .

Support 12.751 16,848 123,635 . 168,704 130,453 452391 452.391
SponsorsNp

- 2,713 1,104 . . 66314 70,631 262 70.693
Interest Income 12 . 2.183 3311 13 21 5,440 1,713 7.153
Forgiveness of debt - . 59,141 329,708 . . 388,840 • 388.849
MisceBeneous 2.770 10,389 4,844 69,693 25,146 . 113,042 7,655 120.697

livldnd contrlbutfons . . . . . 241.499 . 241 41X1

Total revenues and other support 1 5.4J4.541 $ 3.124.919 i 1.957.439 S  953.129 i 1.120.088 t l4flS?3«? i 482.577 S 15.4.34 urn

EXPENSES

PayroB t 432,968 S 1324.986 s 377395 s 775,425 S  414.730 s 432326 S  3,658330 s 753.068 S 4.411.598
PayrcB taMs 33.521 97,919 29327 59,738 33,519 34,195 288,419 58304 346.723
Employee treneflts 106,054 415,890 142.854 289,965 97,771 180394 1332.648 111,111 1.343.759
Retirement 29.200 70,406 18,908 61,936 27,831 16,181 224,482 71,547 296.009
Advertising SCO 1,912 4,013 818 9,487 18.730 • 16.730
BenkcSiarges . . 4,444 . 1 4,445 7329 11.774
Bad debt 10 . 90 . . 100 . 100

Computer cost 24,540 4,759 3,027 14,926 750 48,002 116346 164.848
Contractual 629,045 32,930 230,984 38,896 2,719 116,585 1,050,059 39,743 1.090.702
Depredadon 28,300 108,291 261,950 14307 432,748 147,367 580.115
Oues/regtstralion 5377 . 488 868 1312 7,945 . 11,879 19.824
Duplicating 8,852 . .

. . 8352 4,155 13.007
Irtsurartce 6.714 14,798 23390 60,672 14,130 7,164 127,066 33392. 160.960
Interest 7,775 6,022 21,956 . 1,610 39,383 164,045 203.406
Meeting and conferertce 8.673 813 2,567 8,104 565 22369 43,291 24,957 66.248
Miscellaneous expertse 181 1,695 637 34,793 3,651 2.931 43,688 19,278 83,166
MbceBaneous taxes . . 34,900 . . 34,900 369 35389
Equipment purchases 1.292 15374 . 7387 . . 23,853 1,180 25,033
OfSce mqrense 24.820 8.499 6,695 11,475 6,458 807 58,754 11,656 70,410
Postage 97 268 138 53 214 . 770 24336 25,006
Prtrfesslortel fees 4.300 . 1,301 36,095 . . 41,696 00,966 132,664
Staff developmera atxf IraMng 2.128 1380 1,678 72 1304 21,877 29339 10,590 39329
Sutncrlption* . . . 655 354 . .  1,009 399 1,408
Telephone 2.087 2.356 18,479 17,817 2,336 1369 44,664 52,308 06,072
Travel 7,951 18358 15,412 5,163 29331 608 74.941 4,855 79,796
VeNde 2300 5.775 1,088 37,795 44,426 6366 09,402 13,436 112,836
Rent • 24.800 . ISO . 24350 24,950
Space costs . 194348 332351 512392 1300 376 1341.065 106,886 1,147,931
Direct cBent assistance 3.947,152 214.436 868384 10,674 23,619 21,049 4.685314 - 4.865314

Irv-Urxi expertses . 241.499 .
. . 241.499 - 241.499

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES BEFORE

MANAGEMENT AND GENERAL ALLOCATION 5338.483 2.699.8X 1,994372 2319,865 721370 694366 13.629.406 1.880,406 15,709,812

Allocation of managsmsra and general expenses 712384 361.661 271348 315,436 98.066 121.693 1.680.406 (1,880,406) .

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES S 5350,767 s 3.021.491 s 2366.116 2.835301 S  819.456 s 1,016,679 S 15.709.812 % $ 15,709312

8m Independwrt Auditor*' Roport
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SQimiWgSTgRW COMMUWtTY SERV1CE3. ISC.

CONSOUDATED SCHEDULE OP PUNCT10NAL REVENUES AND EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2018

REVENUES

Oovwnment contracts

Proyam aetvtca ̂
Rental ktconw

Oevelopef fee Income

Support
Sponsorship

Interest Income

FcgKrettess of detit

MisceSatteous

IrvMnd contrfbutlorts

Educetlon

Home Energy end Homeless

PrwrPfBl Nutrition Programs

S 4.934^42 $ 2.823.698

104.617

23

2,010

35.405

7

126

161.652

$  1.920.112
76.506
117.370

99.437

60

1.051
59.141

6.465

Housing
Services

47.823

976.904

684.072
50,000

1.362

16.630

42.373

Economic

Development
Services

S  756.952

17.915

139.240

Other

Pfoorsms

;  166.021

794.863

200

130.530

105.206

35

47.352

Total

Proofim

10.649.748

1.868.188
801,642
50.000

509.229

105266

2.478

75.971

98.346

161,852

Menagement
and Qeneral

405.345

6.48

2.426

2018

Total

11.055.093
1.868,188
801.642

50.000

509229

105286

6.959

75.971

100,772

181652

Total revenues S 5.040,692 3 2260.182 S 1.621.364

EXPENSES

Peyrol S  398.452 S  1208.631 S  435638 5  771.028 5 405,189 S  439.358 %  3.658.196 i 774.466 S  4.432.662
Peyrd taxes 31.509 99.882 34,153 56.603 30,416 36.918 289,771 60613 350.684

Employee lieneflts 122.782 453204 146694 278,393 87,744 187.020 1275617 54.590 1.330.107
Retirement 24.960 69.878 21,031 84.244 19.260 17.448 218,821 73.148 289.969
Advertising . 142 1.897 4,186 2.114 16.172 24.491 - 24.491
Bank Charges IS . 120 3.834 . - 3.969 9.079 13.048
Computer cost . 9.185 4600 14.144 14298 3.500 45.427 82,052 107,479

Contrectuai 518.340 52.4U 242.935 20.382 2.716 109.718 948.536 14.921 981,457

Depreciation 28.300 108291 187.840 - 16,131 320.562 147.367 467.929

Duea/registrstlon . 6.036 - 343 988 997 6664 10.175 16639

OupBceting 1.584 6.148 . . . - 9,732 N 4.321 14.053

Insurance 5.909 13681 23,653 52.287 14.610 6248 116.068 38680 154.448

Interest 8,856 7,759 6,997 2.554 25.966 116.501 142,487

Meeting end conference 3.981 58 9293 7,177 600 19.305 40.394 35.924 76,316

MisceEaneous ei^enee 909 971 2603 18,696 4,442 18.560 45,881 13.182 59.063

Miscalaneous taxes . . 26681 . . 26681 986 27687

Equipmenl purchases 4.870 24620 80 12648 - - 41,418 2605 43.723

OfSca expense 34.413 12613 8.440 14.508 12.042 4,078 88.090 20.402 106.492

Postage 132 274 182 31 348 SO 1.017 22.918 23.935

Professional 4.690 . 1.875 15.870 - - 22.644 83.766 106.410

Staff development and training 1.430 23.724 2.624 8287 5.675 28.044 69.764 2.943 72.727

SubscripOons . . 28 87 - - 115 1.329 1.444

Teleptwne 2.088 15297 19.681 14.589 2.435 3239 57607 58.578 113683

Travel 5.335 20.013 20612 5.195 29.509 2.000 82664 3609 85673

Vehicle 2.140 2610 712 31625 45200 9201 91689 10.981 102.570

Rent . 25201 . . . - 25201 - 25.201

Space costs 148 140213 258.849 438644 - 1,009 836.563 128.966 965.529

Direct dent assistance 3.883.468 145.220 823.938 14.447 50,531 23,643 4.741.446 4,741.445

In-kind expenses . 151.852 . . . . 161.852 -
161.852

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES BEFORE

GENERAL AND MANAGEMENT AUOCATION 4647.201 2630.152 2.172688 2.048214 728,119 945691 13271.485 1.749.700 15,021.165

AJtocetion of menagement and general erqienses 839.051 333.574 288.406 270.035 95.995 124.639 1.749,700 f1.749.7001 -

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES S 5,486.252 S 2.883.726 S 2.458,794 S 2.318249 S 824.114 S  1.070.030 S 15.021.165 1 S  15.021.165

See Independent Audltora' Report
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SOUTHWESTERN COMIVIUIMITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COIVIPANIES

NOTES to SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2019

NOTE 1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The acGompanyihg schedule of expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule)
includes the federal award activity of Southwestern Corhmunlty Services, Inc.
under programs of the federal government for the year ended May 31, 2019. The
information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of
the operations of Southwestern Community Services, Inc., It is not intended to
and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows
of the Organization.

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of
accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles
contained In the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not
allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

NOTE 3 INDIRECT COST RATE

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. has elected not to use the ten percent
de minlmis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

NOTE 4 FOOD DONATION

Nonmonetary assistance is reported in the Schedule at the fair value of the
commodities received and disbursed.

NOTE 5 SUBRECIPIENTS

Southwestem Community Services. Inc. had no subrecipients for the year ended
May 31, 2019.
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of. Directors of

Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
Keene, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the consolidated
financial statements of Southwestem Community Services, Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit
corporation) and related companies, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as of May 31, 2019, and the related consolidated statements of activities, cash flows,
and functional expenses for the year then ended, and the related consolidated notes to the
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 5, 2019.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting (intemal
control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Southwestern Community Services,
Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s intemal control.

A deficiency in Internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in intemal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's consolidated financial statements will not
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet Important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of the internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during
our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in intemal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Southwestern Community Services,
Inc.'s consolidated financial statements are free of material rnisstatement, we performed tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
consolidated financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of intemal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Organization's intemal control or on compliance. This report Is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
Organization's intemal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable
for any other purpose.

Novembers, 2019
Wolfeboro, New Hampshire
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS* REPORT ON COMPLIANCE

FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
Keene, New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
We have audited Southwestem Community Services, Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit
corporation) and related companies' compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on
each of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s major federal programs for the year ended May
31, 2019. Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s major federal programs are identified in the
summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned
costs.

Management's Responslbllitv
Management is responsible for compliance with the federal statutes, regulations, and the terms
and conditions of Its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors' Responslbllitv
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Southwestem Community
Services, Inc.'s niajor federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States; and Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance, require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major
federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about
Southwestern Community Services. Inc.'s compliance with those requirements and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of
Southwestem Community Services, Inc.'s compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
In our opinion, Southwestern Community Services, Inc. compiled, in all material respects, with the
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of
its major federal programs for the year ended May 31, 2019.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance
Management of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. Is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective intemai control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered
Southwestem Community Services, Inc.'s intemai control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to
determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of intemai control over compliance. Accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Southwestem Community Services, Inc.'s
internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in intemai control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does hot allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in intemai
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies in Internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal prograrn will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on
a timely basis. A significant deficiency in intemai control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in intemai control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in intemai control
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with govemance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemai control
over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that were not Identified.

The purpose of this report on intemai control over compliance is soiely to describe the scope of
our testing of intemai control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not'suitable for any other
purpose.

Novembers, 2019
Wolfeboro, New Hampshire
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2019

SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the consolidated financial
statements of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. were prepared In accordance with
GAAP.

2. No significant deficiencies disclosed during the audit of the consolidated financial
statements are reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. No material
weaknesses are reported.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the consolidated financial statements of
Southwestern Community Services, Inc. which would be required to be reported in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs are
reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and
on Internal Contrdl Over Corhpliance Required by the Uniform Guidance. No material
weaknesses are reported.

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for.Southwestern
Community Services, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all major federal programs.

6. There were no audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR
section 200.516(a).

7. The programs tested as major programs were: U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services; Low-Income Home Energy Assistance, .93.568, and U.S. Department of
Transportation; Formula Grants for Rural Areas, 20.509.

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $750,000.-

9. Southwestem Community Services, Inc. was determined to be a low-risk auditee.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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SOUTHWESTERN COMIVIUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2019

There were no findings or questioned costs that were required to be reported in the Schedule
of Findings and Questioned Costs for the year ended May 31, 2018.
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